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COMW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 5

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  [gavel] Good
nor ni ng everyone. Happy Monday. | am Vanessa
G bson, Council Menber and Chair of the Commttee on
Public Safety and | wel cone each and every one of
you, ny coll eagues in governnent and each and every
one of you here. Today's hearing will be testinony
on two resolutions. The first resolution is Res
0121, which recognizes every June as @un Viol ence
Awar eness Month in the Gty of New York. As we all
know, gun violence unfortunately inpacts the |ives of
New Yorkers on a daily basis. Oten tines, the
average New Yorker is not aware of the fact that gun
vi ol ence takes place everyday across our city. This
i s because much of the gun violence in the Gty of
New Yor k happens in a pocket of nei ghborhoods
t hroughout the city. To make nmatters worse, gun
vi ol ence has tendency to increase during the sunmer
nont hs.

In 2011, shootings rose by nearly 120%
during the nmonths of July and August in conparison
with the rest of the year. By declaring every
sumrer, every June as Gun Viol ence Awareness Month as
acity, we will be able to concentrate annua

hei ghtened priority attention to gun violence at a
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 6
time when it is nost prevalent. And we will have the
opportunity to bring all New Yorkers, community
activists, tenant |eaders, and nenbers of our clergy
together in the nonths |eading up to June to discuss
ways in which we can end the cycle of gun viol ence.

Next, we will hear testinony Reso No.
0264, which supports two bills currently in Al bany
t hat woul d prohibit using possession of a condom as
evidence in certain civil and crininal trials,
hearings or proceedi ngs. Advocacy groups have been
hard at work on this issue for the past several years
because there is a genuine concern that the practice
of adm tting possession of a condominto evidence has
a chilling effect on the regular the use of condons.
Therefore, creating public health concerns.

The NYPD heard the advocates, el ected
of ficial and many others, and recently announced its
updated policy whereby they will limt the
ci rcunst ances under which condons will be secured as
arrest evidence. Wile we have not yet seen the
NYPD s Updated Patrol Cuide sections on this issue,
it is our understanding that condons confiscated in

arrests such as pronoting prostitution an sex
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 7
trafficking cases will continue to be invoiced as
arrest evidence.

Today, we'll be discussion the bills in
Al bany that would prohibit this type of evidence in
all prostitution rel ated of fenses, which includes the
of fenses of pronoting and permtting prostitution as
well as sex trafficking. It is also inportant to
note that the bills currently in Al bany al so prohibit
possessi on of condons as evidence in certain civil
cases. On a procedural note, today we will be voting
on Resol ution Nunber 121, but will not be voting on
Resol ution 264 today. | want to thank everyone for
attendi ng today, for your presence.

I ook forward to hearing testinony on
both of these resolutions before us, and before turn
this hearing over to the prine sponsors of both
resolutions, for the sake of tine and col | eagues do
have to | eave for other pressing commttee hearings.
l|"d like to ask our commttee clerk to begin a rol
call so that we will be able to take a vote on
Resol ution 121, which recogni zes every June as Gun
Vi ol ence Awareness Month in the Cty of New York.

Thank you
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 8

CLERK: WIlliam Martin, Community C erk,
roll call vote, Conmittee on Public Safety,

Resol ution 121. Council Menber G bson

COUNCI L MEMBER G BSON: | vote Aye.

CLERK: Torres.

COUNCI L MEMBER TORRES: | vote Aye.

CLERK: WIIlians.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS:  Aye.

CLERK:  Cor negy.

COUNCI L MEMBER CORNEGY: Aye

CLERK: Deut sch

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH:  Yes.

CLERK: Matteo.

COUNCI L MEMBER MATTEO  Yes.

CLERK: By a vote of six in the
affirmative, zero in the negative and no abstentions,
the item has been adopted. Menbers, please sign the
Comm ttee Report.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you very nuch,
and thank you col |l eagues. | know sone of you have to
step out. So I think you for being here so that we
could vote on this very inportant resolution. And

now | 'd like to turn this hearing over to ny
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 9
col | eague and the prinme sponsor of Res 0121, Counci
Mermber Jumaane W | i ans.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS:  Thank you
Madam Chair, and thank you very much for having this
heari ng, and working hard to get it out in the nonth
of June. | just want to recogni ze Council Menber
Zack Reed from C evel and who's visiting us today, and
has been very nuch trying to see how New York City is
dealing with gun violence, as he's dealing with sone
of the simlar things over in Ceveland. [|'m happy
that we can of officially declare GQun -- June as QGun
Vi ol ence Awareness Month in New York City. A simlar
| egislation is being proposed by New York State
Assenbl yman Carine Camara and State Senator Ruth
Hassel | - Thonpson to designate the nonth as a
statewide initiative

The city cannot stand by and do not hi ng
when shootings are on the rise especially in specific
nei ghbor hoods. And just because summrer is fast
approaching, it does nmean that an increase in
vi ol ence, gun viol ence, stabbings, and other forns of
vi ol ence nust increase. |In collaboration with Gun
Vi ol ence Awar eness Month, Co-Chair Tom ka Mall ory of

the Task Force to Conbat Gun Vi ol ence and ot her
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 10
el ected officials, Gun Viol ence Awareness Month
focuses to concentrate an annual hei ghtened attention
to the issue of gun violence and gun safety in our
comrunities, as typically June is the nonth each year
when gun vi ol ence ri ses.

This nmonth consists of a series of events
and actions ained at raising awareness about the need
to end gun violence. Between |ast week's Not in My
Hood March and Resource Fair in Brooklyn, which
i ncluded Conptroller Scott Stringer, Speaker Melissa
Mar k- Viverito, various elected officials; Shandi Al
Fada of GVAC [sic], the NWACP, Hot 97, WB. Less
[sic], were anbng event participants. As | have
consistently stated, the resources and nulti-Iayered
response to gun viol ence and other fornms of violence
will go a long way toward addressing the underlying
causes of violence. And ending the penchant to
engage in this type of violence. Designating June as
@un Vi ol ence Awareness Month is a very big first
st ep.

| want to say just because this gun
vi ol ence increases every sunmer, it's not sonething
that we have to, or sonething we nust accept. W

need to view this violence as a public health issue,
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 11
and we need to really re-think how we're addressing
this issue. W need all agencies to be included in
how we deal with this issue. The NYPD, of course, is
an inmportant partner in getting this violence down,
but they cannot be the only partner. W need the
Departnent of Mental Health and Community -- Mental
and Conmunity Health. W need the Division of Youth
and Community Devel opnent. W need all of these
agenci es working together to |ike a scal pel on these
conmuni ti es.

W know whi ch communities are the issues.
The same conmunities that we send the Police
Departnment in to help with these issues are the sane
comrunities we have to send the other agencies as
well. And | don't believe we will fix this problem
until we really wap our head around this. Until we
start funding the groups on the ground |ike Biased
Arrests [sp?], like Man of Ink [sp?], | Love My Life,
GVAC [sp?]or doing violence interruption work. [sic]
Man Up in Eastern New York has dropped. The 75th
Preci nct needs to be nunber one in gun violence.
They have made it nowin the third or fourth. They
had a precipitous drop in gun violence although it's

a smal |l spi ke com ng up now.
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 12

It's inportant that other groups like
that get funded. | think all of these things in
col l aboration with NYD who are working on new focus
deterrence nodels, and all, in fact, of the agencies
wor ki ng together is the key. I'mexcited. [|I'm
hopi ng that by the end of June, this city will have a
conprehensive rollout. W'Il have a rollout of
conpr ehensi ve response to the gun violence. And we
just will not accept that a spike has to happen.
Everybody has a part to play including the comunity.
The comunity has to hold itself accountable.

The community has to work with the Police
Departnent. We have to redefine what's snitching is.
There's confusion about what it is. W have to nake
sure everybody understands their part that they have
to play. So I want to say thank you again, Madam
Chair, and thank you fromny col | eagues who are
supporting this. |In particular, the Chair and
Counci | Menber Cornegy have really been hel pi ng push
many of these things forward. |1'mlooking forward to
working with all of ny colleagues on this. And we
ask everybody to go to www. gunvi ol enceawar eness
nonth.org. It's www. gunvi ol enceawar enessnont h. or g,

and you can hash tag gvanmnyc.
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 13
" mnot confused. This passage,
hopeful Iy, of this resolution, and a marches are not
what is going to solve the problem It's what
happens after the marches, what happens after the
resolution and the resources we put forward that is
going to address the problem As well as -- I'm
sorry. | forgot to nention the |egislation that we
have to help deal with the influx of guns from down
Sout h, and believe it or not, fromother places in
New York State. Thank you
CHAI RPERSON G BSON: Thank you very mnuch

Counci | Menmber WIIlianms, and, you know, obviously
this is an issue that's near and dear to ny heart as
wel |l representing the Bronx. As soneone who served
as a former nmenber of the Assenbly working with State
col |l eagues to affirm June as Gun Vi ol ence Awar eness
Month in the State of New York, this is an everyday
reality that too many New Yorkers live with each and
every day. And as ny coll eague has said, gun
vi ol ence now has taken on a new form And we don't
be creative in adopting those approaches that really
take no not just the social factors, the health

factors.
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 14
The fact that this is truly, truly a
crisis that we live in, and we nust have a holistic
approach. And that's where Cure Violence and calling
on the Departnment of Health and vari ous other
agencies. Not forgetting about clergy, but everyone
really com ng together. There have been too many
lives disrupted, too many famlies devastated. And I
know nmy col | eagues and I, we're always at funerals,
and it's extrenely sad to | ook at a nother and father
and nmourn the loss of a child. And know that there's
not hing we can do to bring that child back. But
certainly, we can reaffirmand recommt ourselves to
prevent those tragedi es from happeni ng down the |ine.
And so, I"'mreally proud that today we
can officially cast our vote and support this
resolution. It's inmportant for so nany reasons, and
really noving forward maki ng sure that while June
woul d be the official nonth, each and every day that
we are blessed with an opportunity to serve the
public, we should always strive to reduce those
nunbers. And change those statistics into success
stories. So | want to thank Council Menber WIIians

for his |eadership and ny col |l eagues for supporting




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 15
this very inportant resolution. And | et ne quickly
acknowl edge ny col | eagues who are here with us today.

Menbers of the Public Safety Conmttee
Counci | Menber WIlians, Council Menber Torres,
Counci | Menber Cornegy, Council Menber Matteo,
Counci | Menber Deutsch, and al so have been joi ned by
Counci | Menber Menchaca, and Council Menber Lander.
And now we wi Il hear from co-sponsors of our second
resolution, which is Res 0264, which supports the
bills in Al bany that prohibit using possession of a
condom as evidence in certain civil and crim nal
trials, hearings, or proceedings, and if Counci
Menmber Wllians is okay... Wuld you |like ne to --
Wul d you li ke to speak on that Reso?

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS:  Sure.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Okay, I'Il turn it
over and start with Council Menber WIIians.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS: |'ve never
heard an el ected official so nice. The Resolution in
Support of A 2736 and S. 1379, which would anend state
| aw by prohibiting using possession of a condom as
evidence in a trial, hearing, or proceeding for any
of fense defined in Article 2030 of Section 240.37 of

the Penal Law. NYPD recent announcenent from
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 16
Conmi ssi oner Bratton announced it would stop
confiscating condons as arrest evidence in
prostitution, prostitution in school zones, and
loitering for the purposes of prostitution cases.
NYPD shoul d be appl auded for that. At the sane tine,
this ban does not go far enough to protect vul nerable
New Yorkers as it does not extend to trafficking,
pronoting and permtting offenses. Continued use of
condons as evidence in these cases will have
uni nt ended consequences of |eaving victins of
trafficking and young people w thout protection
creating an incentive for traffickers to wthhold
access to condons for the people the control.

In addition, the changes were not

codi fied into | aw neani ng they can be changed back at
any time or any particular admnistration. A recent
study showed that up to 50% of people surveyed have
not carried condons at sonme point for fear that they
woul d be used by police or prosecutors to prove they
intended to engage in prostitution. NYC has |ong
been a place that pronotes safe sex education. So
for police officers to arrest soneone for possessing
condonms is not only unacceptable, but conpletely

backtracks the progress our city has nade in




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 17
conmbating sexually transmtted di seases, and
unpl anned pregnhancies. | believe New York City even
has its own brand of condons they're handing out.
Wi ch kind of flies in the face of what's going on
NOW.

As Co-Chair of |ast sessions Stop,

Question and Frisk hearings, which ultimately [imts
New York City's policing tactics that were abusive,
this issue was extensively discussed from
representatives in other communities, who |ike people
of nore color were often nore targeted by police
whet her they actually engaged in sex work or not.
For that, | amglad there is continued nonentumto
resolve this issue. Passing this bill may all ow
peopl e who are currently being sex trafficked to
negotiate for their own sexual safety. And the right
to use condons while they are in a trafficking
situation. |If sex traffickers are aware that condons
are being used as evidence of sex trafficking, they
will sinply prevent their victimfromusing condons.
New York State needs to further restrict the
possessi on of condonms from being used in evidence in

all prostitution related of fenses.
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 18

Today, the Gty Departnent of Mental --
the Gty Departnent of Health and Mental Hygi ene and
al so the County D.A's Ofice and dozens of comunity
groups who will testify before the Council Commttee
in favor of Resolution No. 264. | thank you for
being here. | thank my partner in this, Counci
Menmber Carl os Menchaca, who has been | eadi ng the way
in pushing this forward. As nentioned, | |earned
about this during the hearings that | co-chair with
Stop, Question, and Frisk. And | |earned from
menbers of the LBGT community of the enbarrassnent
made in the face -- as they testified police officers
actually violated themon going to private areas to
| ook for condons that they then used on a charge of
prostitution,

That's a huge probl em obvi ously, and |
feel that if one group is being profiled, then we are
all being profiled. And | hope that everyone who was
part of the Stop, Question and Frisk Reformw Il be
part of this as well. It was very powerful that a
community that many people did not think would be
able to come together |ike the LGBT comunity, |ike
the Black and Brown conmunity cane together and said,

This is a problem This is as nmuch of a probl em now
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 19
as what we are battling, and continue to battle. And
|"mvery proud to be hel ping shepherd sone of this --
shepherd this legislation along with ny col | eague,
Carl os Menchaca. Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you very nuch,
Counci |l Menber WIllianms, and |, too, want to thank
you for your |eadership, and certainly support this
effort. | applaud the NYPD and Comm ssioner Bratton
for realizing that is policy should be changed. And
as ny coll eague has indicated, certainly, we need to
go a step further, and that requires Al bany
| egislation so that we can change State law. So |'m
really proud to support this effort, and work with ny
col l eagues so that during this legislative session in
Al bany right now there are two weeks left. But
hopeful Iy, we can get sonme action and nmake sure that
these bills wll pass. And now, | turn this hearing
over to the co-sponsor as well working with Counci
Menber WIllianms. Certainly an advocate and a | eader.
They' ve done so nmuch incredible work to get us to
this point. | want to recognize Council Menber
Carl os Menchaca.

COUNCI L MEMBER MENCHACA: Thank you

Chair G bson, for that, and buenos dias, everyone.
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 20
So ny nane is Carl os Menchaca, Menber of the Gty
Council, and I'm honored to serve also as the Chair
of Immgration. This norning this commttee wll
consi der and di scuss Resol ution 264 in support of
A. 2736 and the Senate 1379, which would anend state
| aw by prohi biting using possession of a condom as
evidence in prostitution and prostitution rel ated
trial, hearings, or proceedings. |I'mproud to be
chanpioning this resolution with the Chair of the
Conmi ttee on Housing, Council Menber WIlians. Thank
you also to the Chair of Public Safe Council Menber
G bson for allowng this inportant resolution to
appear at this public hearing bringing nuch needed
attention to, and conversation around an incredibly
i mportant issue. Thank you nost especially to the
many advocates in this roomwho have on behal f of so
many New Yorkers are working fearl essly dedi cated
their entire lives really to figure out how we can
solve this issue. And ensuring that our justice
systemlives up to its fullest, fullest potential.

Al nost everyday as | talk to ny

coll eagues in the City Council and to advocates about
this resolution, I'"'mrem nded that this cause is one

that is nmulti-layered in some of the nost significant
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 21
ways. We said earlier today that this is a kind of a
victims rights bill, and a public health bill al
wrapped up in one. O course, this is a public
safety issue because it has everything to do with the
way our conmunities. Many di senfranchi sed interact
with our public safety system It is an issue of
public health because we continue to deal with the
realities of sexually transmtted di seases and
infections, and this proposed ban will encourage
everyone to think nore holistically about their
behaviors. It is an issue that affects the LGBT
community, particularly those who are young, of
color, low inconme backgrounds and as they continue to
be burdened by the realities of the systemthat
unfortunately works against their very being in nmany
ways. And, of course, it is an immgrant issue
because the inmm grant population in our city
continues to be one of the nost vul nerable for
arrests and for prostitution.

In short, supporting this resolution --
in supporting the sinple reality that the condons are
safe for all to carry. And these are the sane
condonms we're spendi ng so nuch noney every year

getting out into the community in bars and non-
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 22
profits. And so, we nmust send a clear nessage to the
State Legislature that in this city we care about
heal t h, about safety, and about vibrant communities
that live here. It nust be with resounding clarity
that we express our support for the type of
legislation, this legislative action that encourages
the behaviors that we so violently support in the
city.

And that discourages the type of
practices that continue to fracture our system
Thank you again for your participation, for work on
advocates. And it just gives ne so much pleasure to
be partnering up with our Chair of Housing Counci
Menber WIllianms. And as we continue to work together
as a teamall our Council, Gty Council coll eagues,
you're just going to see sone very fierce and very
cl ear nessages about our work here. So thank you,
Chair for your tine.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you very nuch
Counci | Menber Menchaca, and we have been joi ned by
two additional nenbers of Public Safety, Counci
Menmber Espinal and Council Menber Vacca. And I'd
like to turn it over to our Commttee Clerk for

further votes.
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 23

CLERK: Resolution 121, Council Menber
Vacca.

COUNCI L MEMBER VACCA: | vote aye.

CLERK:  Espi nal .

COUNCI L MEMBER ESPI NAL: Aye.

CLERK: The vote now currently stands at
eight in the affirmative.

CHAI RPERSON @ BSON: Thank you very mnuch
col | eagues, and now |l wll call up the first panel.
James Vogel representing State Senator Vel nanette
Mont gonery; Dan Master fromthe Staten Island
District Attorney's Ofice; D.A Dan Donovan;
Madel i ne Singas from Nassau County; Kathleen Rice,
District Attorney's Ofice.

[ background di scussi on]

[ Pause]

JAMES VOGEL: Good norning. |'mJim
Vogel , and |I' m speaki ng on behal f of ny boss, Senator
Mont gonery, who is stuck in Al bany today. Ckay.
This is Senator's Mntgonmery's statenent:

| offer ny deepest thanks to all the
advocates, to Council Menbers G bson, WIIlians, and
Menchaca for binging this resolution before the

Conmittee, and to the Commttee for your
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COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 24
consi deration of what | feel is an urgent matter of
civil rights, public health, and conmobn sense.

In New York State, it is currently
perm ssi ble practice for police and other |aw
enforcenent officials to stop soneone. And upon
finding during a search one or nore condons to arrest
and charge that person with multiple crinmes using the
presence of condons as evidence of prostitution,
patroni zing a prostitute, pronoting prostitution,
permtting prostitution, maintaining a prem ses for
prostitution, |ewlness, or assignation, or
mai ntai ni ng a body house.

Peopl e are astonished to find that this
is acurrent law. W are in the 30th year of an
ongoi ng health crisis, the scourge of AIDS. W
pronote safe sex and public service announcenents.
New York City wi sely makes condons avail abl e
t hroughout the Gty in ubiquitous bows in bars,
restaurants, hotels, and just about everywhere. And
yet, we still have the contrary reality that carrying
condons can get you arrested. W claimto pronote
public health, but we penalize everyone, particularly
sex workers, for actively pronoting personal and

public safety. | cannot believe this is the will of
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the people. This is very hard to explain to peopl e,
and when you finally convince themthat you aren't
maki ng a bad joke, they imedi ately grasp the
seriousness of the situation.

| would like to quote froma coment on
nmy legislation offered online by a constituent who
signed hinself as Druid Lens [sp?]. Even as a
retired attorney, | had no idea that the nere
possessi on of condons woul d be able to be used
agai nst someone in a prostitution trial or a civil
proceeding. Wo drafted that |law, the Vatican? What
a crock. It denmeans wonen and nmen who want to have
safe sex, encourages the spread of AIDS and is, as
they say in the law, stupid, stupid, stupid. Ckay,
they don't say that in the law, which is why | am now
a tour guide.

VWhile | am encouraged that New York City
Police are taking a nodified approach to the
application of the power, | strongly feel we nust
speak clearly and strongly in regards to the public
intent to maintain public health. The current
practice designed as it is to exploit |oopholes that
unintentionally continue the suffering and deaths of

t housands cannot be renedi ed by nodified practices.
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W nust speak with one voice through clear and
unequi vocal legislation that this practice is
inperm ssible within the State of New YorKk.

I would like to close by quoting anot her
constituent's comments. Bill Man [sp?] wote: Any
activity? WII it, the Bill, sinply Ianguish there,
die in commttee and be re-introduced next session,
agai n? Perhaps the legislative history should al so
reference the nunber of new reported HI V-AlIDS cases,
and the nunber of H V-AIDS deaths for that
| egi slative session. The nunbers for new infections
and deaths will|l be reduced by passage of this bill.
Failure to pass guarantees an increase in both
infection and death of New York residents.

He was conmenting on the bill that was
sent through the Judiciary on January 9th, of 2013.
H s comrent was mailed April 23rd, 2013. | hope we
do not keep M. Man waiting any |onger, nor any of
t he hundreds of thousands who agree wi th himthat
i mredi ate action nmust be taken. It is ny hope and ny
believe that with the passage of this Resolution from
the Public Safe Commttee of the New York City
Counci|l that the w shes of the people of New York

Cty will be clearly heard and respected. And that
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we can finally end this dangerous practice across New
York State once and for all.

| thank you for your consideration and
support of Senate 1379. Respectfully, Vel manette
Mont gonery, Senator, 25th District.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you very nuch.
Thank you. You may begin.

DAN MASTER  Thank you, Madam Chair and
the nenbers of the Commttee for this opportunity to
appear before you today. M nane is Dan Master. |'m
the Chief Assistant District Attorney of Staten
Island, and |I'mhere to testify for ny boss Dan
Donovan, District Attorney for Staten Island. First,
let me say that for the ten years that Dan Donovan
has been District Attorney of Staten I|sland, our
of fice has never used the possession of condons as
evi dence of prostitution in the prosecution of
loitering for the purpose of prostitution cases under
Section 240.37 of the Penal Law.

That scenario seens to be the one nost
often stated by the proponents of the legislation in
question today. |It's inportant for New York to
encourage safe practices, and it is a laudable to

save lives by not discouraging individuals from
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carrying condons out of fear they'll be arrested and
charged with a prostitution offense. While we are in
w despread agreenent with the goals and purposes of
this legislation, we feel that a blanket prohibition
on the use of condons as evidence may be inprudent.
Let ne be clear. The condom possessi on evi dence
woul d be used by ny office to prosecute traffickers
and those who patronize underage victins, not
prostitutes thenselves. The |egislation does not on
its face appear to distinguish between used and
unused condons. Wile we agree the possession of
four or 40 or 400 condons should be used as evidence
of admi ssion that a person was in possession of one
or nore condons for any offenses defined in the
articles quoted.

This |l egislation prohibits the adm ssion
of evidence that a person was in possession of one or
nore quotes, quote "for any offense defined in
Article 230" of the Penal Law. Article 230 includes
Section 230-06 of the Penal Law, Patronizing a
Prostitute in the First Degree, in which a person
patroni zes prostitution and the person patronized is
| ess than 11 years of age, which would be a D Fel ony.

If, for exanple, a man were to patronize a 10-year-
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old male or female prostitute, and the man retai ned
the used condom we as prosecutors woul d want that
condomw th the man's and the 10-year-old's DNA as
evi dence.

Pursuant to this legislation, it appears
that the condom woul d be inadm ssible as evidence to
prove that the man conmtted the D Fel ony.

Simlarly, we can envision sex trafficking cases al so
included in 230. That woul d be bol stered by the use
of condons as evidence to be used agai nst the
trafficker. This being said, we do believe the goals
of this legislation to be | audable, and we hope the

| egi slation can be tweaked even further to protect
the rights and lives our citizens. Thank you very
much

CHAI RPERSON G BSON: Thank you very nuch.
You may begi n.

MADELI NE SI NGAS: Thank you. Good
nor ni ng.

COUNCI L MEMBER:  Good norni ng.

MADELI NE SINGAS: |s this working?

[ Pause] | think I've got it now. It"'s working now.
kay. Thank you. M nane is Madeline Singas. |'m

the Chief Assistant District Attorney in the Nassau
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District Attorney's Ofice. |'mhere representing
our office, and specifically my boss Nassau County
District Attorney Kathleen Rice, who al so serves as
the President of the New York State District
Attorney's Associ ation.

Al nost two years ago D.A. Rice and
instituted a conprehensive policy of banning the use
of condons as evidence in all prostitution rel ated
cases including trafficking and pronoting cases.

DA Rice and | got involved in this issue in the
wake of the Human Ri ghts Watch Report painting the
stark picture of what was happening in city streets
across the country, including New York and Long

I sland. And we were blown away by its concl usion.
Mounti ng evi dence makes clear that police seizures
and trial prosecutions using condons as evi dence
makes sex workers significantly less likely to carry
and use condonms when working. Prosecutori al
discretion is wielded and bal anced at the top of
scal e that wei ghs our neasurenents of the non-
financial public | oss and benefits of |egal action.

In fact, much of what we do from granting
| eniency to co-conspirators assisting the authorities

to deciding whether to hold the |ine on an of fender
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and take himor her to trial is an exercise of a very
precarious and subjective cost benefit anal ysis ainmed
at maxi m zing the public good. Typically, finding
the public good | eads prosecutors to eval uate
deci sions squarely in the context of the public's
safety. But in this instance, that definition nust
al so include the public's health. Prosecutors nust
play the | ong gane when it cones to banni ng condons
as evidence of crine. Thankfully, we have a | ong
hi story of maki ng deci sions based on the | ong gane.
W cut deals for less violent co-conspirators to get
the killer, to low level drug dealers to get the
ki ngpin, and to small tine crooks to get the
mast er m nd.

W' ve made a profession out of |everaging
short-term concessions. |In this case a very snal
evidentiary gane is rarely used in court for |ong-
term public gains. That's what we should do here.
Under any reasonabl e analysis, the seismc public
heal th i npact of using condons as evi dence of
prostitution dwarfs the extrenely courtroom gain, and
the isol ated nunber of cases that nmake it that far
Wth this issue, the public good rests in the |ong

gain not the short one. The same is true not just in
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t hose cases involving prostitution, but also those
i nvolving trafficking and those agai nst pinps and
Johns.

Since | instituted the policy in our
office, a few DAs have agreed to join us in banning
their prosecutors fromusing condons as evi dence
agai nst prostitutes, but not against pinps and
traffickers. W understand their concerns, but we
don't agree with them To us, it doesn't nake
| ogi cal sense to exclude this group of people because
what will happen is traffickers and pinps won't only
refuse to supply condons for their workers, they wll
prohibit their use out of prosecution fear. That
woul d be a nightmare scenario, and it's one we can
easily avoid. Again, we |ooked at the cases in our
of fice as evidence of this. These condons even
agai nst these worthy defendants don't play nuch, if
any, role in their eventual trial prosecution. W
gquite sinply aren't giving up that much by agreeing
not to use them agai nst pinps and traffickers.

So we've chosen to play the | ong gane,
and side with the public health. And at the sane
time figure out ways to nmake these cases stronger

wi th ot her evidence against traffickers and pinps
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separate fromcondons. It can be done. W are doing
it Nassau, and |I'mconfident not a single case
agai nst the Johns or the pinps or the traffickers
wll be affected by it. Wth condons the evidence's
only power is inits enduring and fortunate ability
to deter safer sex in this industry. Put sinply, we
trust that our ADAs have the skills and the evidence
to make their trafficking cases w thout putting the
heal th and reproductive rights of trafficking victins
at risk by creating additional deterrents to condom
access for our trafficking victins.

Because nost state prosecutor's policy
when it conmes to condom sei zures and evi dence don't
conformwith the smart and | ong-termview of how to
pronmote the public safety and health, it is inportant
t hat Al bany get involved and ban their statew de --
ban their use statewi de |ike we've done in Nassau
County. Until we do, sex workers, many of whom are
children and trafficked and highly exploited, wll
continue to be put at risk. Wen it cones to HV,
it's not a hyperbole to say that this is very nuch a
life and death policy decision. Crimnal justice
policy can fail when it is underm ned by conpeting --

conmpeting public policy froma separate unit of
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government. In this instance public policy and
governments across the country, including New York's,
have enbraced efforts to nake condons readily
avail able to sex workers.

None of these governnents condone the sex
i ndustry, yet they still w sely choose to play the
| ong gane when faced with such a dangerous
alternative. |It's time for prosecutorial policy to
stop offering a conpeting nmessage to sex workers.
Prosecutorial discretion doesn't work best as an
absol utist win-at-all-costs paradigm It works best
as a conpl ex amal gam of human costs and public
benefit. In this instance, | believe our action is
evi dence that prosecutors can do a better job
under st andi ng and wei ghing both sides of this
i mportant equation. And that we can confront
governnent when it's sending conflicting nessages.
Thank you for having me here today. Unfortunately,
D.A. Rice could not attend because of a scheduling
conflict.

CHAI RPERSON 3 BSON:  Thank you very mnuch
| appreciate your presence here on behal f of you
bosses. | know themall very well, and so we send

our warnest regards and appreciate you bei ng her
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testifying on their behalf. | want to recognize the
presence of another coll eague, Council Menber Vinny
Gentile, and also | know we have a question and
comrent for one of ny colleagues. | guess ny first
guestion is Nassau County has essentially just done
this change without State Law, right?

MADELI NE SI NGAS: Yes, that's correct.
That's an office policy.

CHAI RPERSON 3 BSON: Do you know ot her
states that have changed their civil and crim nal
| aw? That have refl ected what we're trying to do in
Al bany.

MADELI NE SI NGAS: |'m not aware of any.
| think probably he advocates have a better idea
about that.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Okay. Just to throw
it out there. Thank you very nmuch, and now we'l|
hear from Council Menber Manchaca.

COUNCI L MEMBER MENCHACA: Thank you
Chair G bson, and actually, | want to follow up on
that |line of questioning, M. Mudeline, about the
wor k post - deci sion, and any repercussions or effects
that it's had both positive or negative since this

change was made.
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MADELI NE SI NGAS: You know, | think the
community at large is very thankful that D. A Rice
took a public health stance, which coincided with
public safety. W haven't seen any ram fications
detrinental in our office when we decided to stop
usi ng condons. Again, cases are not nade just on
evi dence of condons. You need testinony. You need
W tnesses. All of that doesn't change just because
you do or do not have condons. So we focus on that
evidence. W try to strengthen our cases. It is by
no nmeans an indication that we are soft on these
crimes. W very vehenently oppose sex trafficking in
the state, in the city, in our county, and we train
our prosecutors to find other evidence and strengthen
our cases that way.

COUNCI L MEMBER MENCHACA: Thank you

CHAI RPERSON G BSON: Thank you Counci |
Menmber Menchaca. Now, we'll hear from Council Menber
WIlians.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS:  Thank you. |
had a question for -- I'msorry, the DDA an |I.D.?

DAN MASTER: Dan Master.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS:  Dan Master.

So, | just want to hear your response to those who
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are saying, and | heard your testinony. But saying
that the traffickers will essentially stop using the
condons, stop allowi ng the people they' re trafficking
to use condons. And you were kind of saying the
opposite of that | guess. That you're only going to
charge traffickers. So | want to hear your response
to that.

DAN MASTER: First let ne say that we on
Staten |sland have probably the | east anount of
experience with prostitution cases of anyone on this
panel. W share a vice squad with Brooklyn. W
don't have our own vice squad, and the tinme that they
spend on Staten Island is essentially to put police
decoys out in the street, and we arrest Johns, and
that's our prostitution caseload. So we don't know
what woul d happen in a trafficking case. W know
what we read, and we know what ot her peopl e specul ate
With respect to these matters. But we don't have the
experience in our borough, at |east not yet. W
haven't done sex trafficking cases. Perhaps we could
be better infornmed by listening to what other

peopl e' s experi ences have been.
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COUNCI L MEMBER W LLIAVS: Did | hear

wong? | thought | heard you say that you woul d
still use it in trafficking cases.
DAN MASTER | said that we would in --

specul ated - -

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS:  [i nterposing] |
see.

DAN MASTER -- that if there were a
situation where we believed that the evidence of
hol di ng the condons would be -- would help our case
that we would like to seize those condons. | think
this issue is going to be ironed out, or may be
ironed out in the Patrol Guide. W haven't seen the
Patrol Guide yet. Many of these cases, especially
trafficking cases, are done by special police units.
And when a special police unit does sonething, it's
often done quite differently than when a patrol unit
does sonething. And the special units go in know ng
what they're going to seize and for what reason
Patrol mght not be able to make those distinctions.
So | think we'd be very interested before we take a
final position on this to see what the Patrol GCuide

is going to say about this.
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COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS: Do you have a
response to-- Even if you're saying that you would
still do the trafficking, do you have a response to
the criticismof what that m ght do? O are you
saying you're not sure now, and you want to wait to
hear ?

DAN MASTER Well, I'"mnot sure, and |
woul d want to wait to hear, and | think it's

specul ation as to what traffickers would do.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLIAMS: | just want to
be clear. In your testinony you said that you woul d
use it still for trafficking.

DAN MASTER: | believe | said that we

coul d foresee instances--

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS: [ nterposi ng]
Ckay.

DAN MASTER -- in which we would like to
have that opportunity to use that as evidence. W as
prosecutors have to prove-- W have the burden of
pr oof - -

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS:  [i nterposing]
|"msorry. Honestly, | understand what you're

saying. |'mjust unclear because you' re saying you
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could foresee using it, but you want to wait to hear
what peopl e are sayi ng?

DAN MASTER | would like to see how t he
specul ati on pans out, and where it has happened in
ot her places before I would want to take a final
position on whether we woul d want them seized or not.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS:  So you coul d
foresee it, but it nmay change?

DAN MASTER  Yeah, 1'd like to see what
happens in the Patrol Guide. | don't want to-- this
is not an intentional pun, but that's -- that's going
to be where the rubber hits the road. Sorry for
that. [laughter] And we'll see how the policy is
translated into practice.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS: Ckay. Thank
you.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you very nuch,
Counci| Menber WIliams. Council Menber Gentile.

COUNCI L MEMBER GENTILE:  Thank you.

Thank you, Madam Chair. Wre the -- For Ms. Rice
office. I'msorry, | don't know your nane.

MADELI NE SINGAS: It's Madeline Singas.

COUNCI L MEMBER CGENTI LE: Ms. Singas,

okay. |'mcurious because the State Island D. A did
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mention patronizing prostitution in the first degree,
whi ch invol ves the age of the person being patronized
being less than 11 years of age. |In that case, D. A
Donovan said if, in fact, if a condomwas recovered
as part of that arrest, they mght want to use that
condomwith the -- with the person and the one
patroni zed, the one that's under 11 years old. The
DNA that could be found in that condom as evi dence in
t hat case when prosecuting for sonmeone who is being
patroni zed who is under 11 years old. | would |ike
your conment about that, and how your office handl es
that 230.06 of the Penal Law.

MADELI NE SI NGAS: No, we handle that. W
prosecute using child wi tnesses. W have ADAs who
are specially trained to speaking with children. You
know, DNA evi dence in condons, |'ve been doing this
for 23 years. | have yet to find it on a condom
using the case with a child. The spermaticide in
condons lots of tines just destroys DNA evi dence
altogether. | think, you know, again |'m not saying
that there isn't an isolated case where a condom
m ght be hel pful to us. | have yet to cone across
that case realistically, practically in our office.

I"mnot saying it doesn't exist. |'mnot saying that
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t hat evidence woul dn't be hel pful. Wat we're saying
is that as a policy, we believe that public health
needs to take a higher inportance in that case. In
all cases that a public policy where we're sei zing
condons for the rare case so we can get sonme DNA
evi dence. We're supporting not using those condons,
and wor ki ng on other ways to prosecute those crines.
Agai n, you know, working with our w tnesses. Wrking
with our police officers using all sorts of other
evi dence that are available to us. So again, we're
not saying that it's never a situation where it m ght
be hel pful. W're just taking the |Iong haul, and
| ooking at the | ong ganme, and saying that public
heal th demands us to all ow people to carry condons to
protect sex workers in general, and those sane
chil dren.

COUNCI L MEMBER GENTILE: Okay, and ny
staff counsel just rem nded us that the | egislation
tal ks about just the nere possession of, not the use
of the condom And that's the subject of the bill.
So thank you. Thank you very much.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you Counci |

Menber Gentile. Next, Council Menber Deutsch.
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COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH: Thank you very
much. | just want to reiterate sonething that ny
col | eague just said that when, you know, when woul d
they use a condom as evidence? And probably you
cannot make an arrest by just finding a condom on
soneone. So | would assunme that, um that if
services were offered by a prostitute that that would
be enough evidence to make an arrest. So that shoul d
be enough. So you wouldn't need to go to vouch a
condom and use it for evidence. Now, you just
nmentioned that you might use it for DNA but that
woul d be like in a case that is actually a rape. And
| should say that if it is a rape case that you woul d
want to use every single piece of evidence with such
a case. So, | still don't understand why woul d you
use a condom and offer that as evidence in what type
of case?

DAN MASTER: | was going to point out to
hel p clarify Council Menber Gentile's statenent that
this would be actually a situation where we coul d
apply two statutes. The one woul d be patroni zing the
under aged prostitute, and the other would be a rape.
And the rape would actually be a higher |evel felony,

a D felony. And again, here's where the Patrol Cuide
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woul d be hel pful. If the police are |ooking at that
as an underage victimcase, they would probably not
collect the condom If they're looking for it as a
rape case, they mght collect the condom Again, |
don't know because that's going to be ironed out in
the Patrol Guide. But even in the exanple that |
posited where an ol der person mght retain the condom
after having sex with an underage victim we would be
in the position to bring that as a rape case, not
just patronizing a prostitute in the first degree
case. W would have an option there.

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH:  Yeah, | still
don't understand, an age case would be an arrest?
You sai d an underage, having sex with an underage
child, but that's an arrest. There's no need to
gather, to have the condom as evi dence?

DAN MASTER It mght bolster the case if
it was a used condom and there was DNA evi dence.

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH:  Yes.

DAN MASTER. If | mght. There is
nothing in the legislation that precludes the use of
condons as coll ection devices for evidence. This
legislation is all about not using as evidence the

nmere presence of unopened condons or even opened
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ones. There's nothing that precludes using a condom
as evidence, but using it as the excuse for an
arrest, that's what this is for. |If you have reason
for an arrest, you have every right to use all the
evidentiary tools that are at your disposal, which
i ncl ude used condons. But you cannot under this
| egi sl ation use the presence of soneone carrying a
cl osed condom or even an open condom t hat has not
been used, or in which there has been no evi dence
that there has been a crinme. You cannot use that as
a reason to arrest sonmeone. | just want to be clear
about that. This does not say you can't use them

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH: [interposing] So
is that going to be used as evidence, a used condom
or a closed condon?

DAN MASTER. The presence of a used
condomis not the target of this particular
| egislation, and as D.A. Rice's testinony has given,
it is amtter of balancing. It's a natter of
cl osing a | oophole, which is being used, which is
having the unfortunate result of having a chilling
effect on the use of condons on sex workers. \Wich
is leading to huge, huge suffering in this comunity.

Now, whether or not there are other evidentiary uses
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for condons, there well nmay be, but this does not
precl ude using them

MADELI NE SINGAS: So | can be clear, D A
Rice's policy, our office doesn't use themin
patroni zi ng pronoting. But we use condom evi dence in
rape cases, which the exanple of the 11-year-old
would be. So ours is a strictly pronoting,
patroni zing, trafficking ban, not a rape ban.

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH: So agai n- -

MADELI NE SI NGAS: Do you understand that?

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH: | wunderstand it,
but agai n unused condons or closed condons was never
used as evi dence because it cannot be used as
evi dence because that's not a crinme, but the crine --

MADELI NE SI NGAS: [interposing] Well,
apparently in the streets it has been as cause for
arrest whether or not it has risen to the |evel--

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH: [interposing] So
t hat should be -- that should be considered a false
arrest if you're arresting sonmeone for an unused
condom

MADELI NE SI NGAS: Wl |, they're saying
that if they arrest soneone for prostitution, and the

basis is their observations and the fact that they
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have five condonms on them those arrests cone to the
attention of our offices, what each particular office
decides to do. | think what we're saying is just the
nere presence or people carrying condons shouldn't be
used against themin our courts of |aw

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH: So the question
is do we know how many cases in New York City that
peopl e were arrested by just carrying condons? |
don't know if we have those nunbers. | would love to
see those nunbers. Cbservation would nean --
observation m ght not be enough to nake an arrest.

It would have to be sone type of offer of sexual acts
to make an arrest, and there had to be al so probably
reported. So, I'mjust still trying to figure out,
you know, someone woul d be-- Wiy you woul d use

evi dence of soneone who is carrying an unused, or

cl osed condonf

DAN MASTER We woul dn't and we haven't.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Counci | Menber,
we'll get that information to you

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH: Ckay, thank you.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON: Committee O erk.

CLERK: Resolution 121, Council Menber

Gentil e.
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COUNCI L MEMBER GENTILE: | vote aye.
CLERK: The vote now stands at nine.
CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  All right, we're
getting there. Thank you. Council Menber Menchaca.
COUNCI L MEMBER MENCHACA: Thank you Chair
G bson. | just want to conme back to a point that was
made earlier about the Patrol Guide, and having sone
experience with a ot of advocates actually in the
same room when there was a recent change in the NYPD
Patrol Guide that allowed for the definition of
gender. That's another case, but what | want to say
is that the Patrol CGuide doesn't get at the issue
itself that we're discussing here today. And so, the
gappi ng the holes that the current novenent in the
NYPD, which we're very thankful that if the changes
were made, it doesn't get at the entire scope of what
the |l egislation that Senator Montgonery and
Assenbl ywoman Cl ark are proposing. So we really
don't -- We're not going to see much difference in
the culture of what's happening on the ground ri ght
now. And so, if they can be picked up, and they do
and we're going to hear fromthe testinony today of
how peopl e are just picked up because they have

condons on them That's going to continue,
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unfortunately, in this post-NYPD change. And so
just want to make sure that everyone is aware of
that. That we don't get to a solution. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON @ BSON: Thank you very mnuch
Counci | Menber Menchaca. And we'd like to thank each
of you for being here. W have Senator Montgonery,
D. A. Donovan, and D.A. Rice. Thank you very much for
your presence today. And our next panelist is Pastor
Glford Monrose fromthe 67th Precinct C ergy Counci
here to speak on behalf of Res 0121.

[ Pause]

PASTOR MONROSE: Good norning, and good
norning to nmy esteened Council Menber Junmaane
WIllianms, and the rest of the Council Menbers and
Madam Chair. Following the protocol, I'mhere to
represent ny boss, which is God the Almghty. [|'m
al so here representing nmenbers of the dergy and
contents of the 67th Precinct. | just really want to
lend nmy voice in support. Normally, every Friday we
see a report fromthe NYPD, and | just really want to
read sonme of these stats that cone to us every
Friday. It says that the comunities of Brownville,
that's in the 33rd Precinct and East Side [sic]of the

67t h Preci nct have each experienced the greatest




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 50
amount of nurders in 2014, and this holds true for
t he past 30 years.

And now t hey show that 100% of the
victine are nales with 85% bei ng African- Aneri can,
and 23% of them being between the age of 18 and 24.
Not ably, 92% of the victins have sone degree of
crim nal background. Saturday, Sunday, and Monday
continue to be the nost dangerous days of the week,
accounting for 38% of the murders. The nurders have
predom nantly occurred during the evening or early
norning hours. In ternms of notives, job-rel ated
mur der account for 22%of all nurders while 15% are
related to the streets. So what we have seen is
presently 83% of the nurder victins are African-
Anerican. So this report shows us three things.
Nurmber one, we know who's been killed. Nunber two,
we know where they're being killed, and nunber three,
we know how is actually doing the shootings.

So | think our discussion, and even as
menbers of the clergy, we tal k about interrupted.
And we have a good non-profit organi zati on who
continue to do this work. But | think that the house
of worship and nenbers of the clergy do have a nora

responsibility. And also an obligation to do nore
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when it conmes to gun violence in our comunities.
One of the things that we have done in the Council of
the 67th is that we have offered our services, our
churches to anyone who suffers, who is nurdered.
Unfortunately, we provide counseling. W provide the
funeral service for free of charge. W offer our
services to our churches, and al so, too, we have
menbers of our comunity al so have all the parents
who -- of nurdered sons.

We formed a support group to help them
navi gate the conplexities of the governnent. But
also try to hel p and navi gate through -- hel ping them
ei ther nunber one nove out of the nei ghborhood. And
nunber two, work with the community to resolve this
grief that happens in our conmmunities. So, | canme to
nunber one support the need that we need to
hi ghlight, the fact that we need to | ook at
definitely that June should be the Gun Viol ence
Awar eness Month. But the second piece is that we
know where the shooting happens. |f we know exactly
the areas that it happens, | think that our response
should be in turn. That we should definitely give
the funding to the organi zati ons who are in those

ar eas.
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I just want to say one | ast thing.
H storically speaking, nenbers of the clergy who
nunber one are especially fromthe Cari bbean and
Counci | Menber Jummane WIIlianms, who served what we
call Little Caribbean. Mst shootings and highlights
in Harlem in East New York and Brownsville in
Bedf ord Stuyvesant historically out of this arise
era [sic], you would have those voices com ng from
the African-Anerican churches who are well
established to tal k about gun violence. And | think
that we can see that if you |l ook in the context of
the 67th or Central Brooklyn, who have predom nantly
Cari bbean Anericans who are now living in those
areas. You can see that we have no funding and no
resources sinply because of the underbelly of the cry
have been comi ng from African- Aneri can cl ergy.
| think it's a new day Central Brooklyn

agai n being the nunber one hot spot for shootings in
New York City. | think the Council should respond in
ki nd because we know where the shooting happens. W
know who is doing the shooting, and I thin, that we
now need to be able to respond to where the shootings
occur. So | just want to thank you agai n Pastor

G lford Monrose representing the 67th Cergy Council.
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CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you very nuch,
Pastor, for being here, and | echo your sentinents
and certainly applaud the work that you and the
clergy are doing in the 67th Precinct. Now, we'll
hear from Council Menber Junaane WIIi ans.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS:  Thank you
Madam Chair. First, | apologize. | have to | eave
after this to Land Use to do sonme voting. | want to
t hank Past or Monrose for comi ng out today and the
work that he's doing in the 67th Precinct. It's a
nodel [sic] and that Clergy Council is very active.
Many peopl e renenber a year or so ago when Ki nmani
G ay was shot and killed on Church Avenue. Young
peopl e got very anxious and started nmaking their
voi ce known. That night | made one phone call. It
was to Pastor Monrose, and we ran up and down Church
Avenue trying to nake sure things -- dodgi ng sone
bottl es and what have you trying to nake sure things
stayed as cal mas possible while making sure the
nessage was out.

I think you for highlighting the issues
particularly about we know who it is and where it is.
During the start of the question, first hand people

were making remarks as if we did not know that both
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the victins and the shooters were Bl ack and Brown,
whi ch we know. Their issue was the abuses of that
question first [sic] weren't really helping the
situation. Now, there's a spike. There have been
spi kes up and down in shootings for the past 12 to 20
years irrespective of how many stops are bei ng nmade.
W want to nmake sure that we have the right solution
and right set of responses to what's going on, and
that includes funding. So |I thank the forner speaker
for creating the task force, and making ne the Co-
Chair. And | thank this speaker for continuing the
support of the task force and priority of the task
force.

Again, lastly, I'll say the violence is
not new, and |I've said that before. The people who
are commtting the violence in New York back in the
day, the conpl exion of the people commtting the
vi ol ence was different. They had a |lighter hue. The
response at that time was that those fol ks need upper
mobility. They needed jobs. They needed educati on,
and so those comunities were given access to jobs
and access to education. The conpl exi on got darker
of the crinme, and the response to it becanme harsher.

If anything at all, the only thing that was sent
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there were police. W want to nmake sure we have the
same resources because we actually know it works.

And al so, depending on who is shooting, we call it an
i ssue of nental health or not. And believe all of
this is also a part of a nental health discussion,
and if it's good for one community we have to make
sure it's good for all of the communities. So thank
you agai n.

PASTOR MONROSE: Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you very nuch,
Pastor, for being here.

[ background di scussi on]

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  And now we're
calling up the next panel to speak on Res 0264,
Andrea Ritchie fromthe Condom Access Coalition
Abigail Swenstein from Legal Aid Society; Lynly Egyes
from U ban Justice Center; and Bianey Garcia, from
Make the Road New York. If you could please cone
f orward

[ background di scussi on]

[ Pause]

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  And 1'd also like to
advi se everyone that for the record, we've received

testinony fromthe District Attorney of Kings County
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Kennet h Thonpson in support of Res 0121 recogni zi ng
June as @un Vi ol ence Awareness Mnth in New York
City, for the record. Thank you for being here, and
I'"d like to just share that we have a nunber of
panel s behind you. We are on atinme limt. There's
anot her commttee conmng after us. So each of you
has three m nutes just for your testinony, and pl ease
state your nanme for the record, and then you may
bei ng. Thank you.

ANDREA RI TCHI E: Thank you and good
nmorning. M name is Andrea Ritchie. |'mthe
Coordi nator Streetw se and Safe. W proudly serve on
the Steering Commttee of Comrunities United for
Police Reformand of the Access to Condons Coalition,
which is made up of over 70 Anti-Trafficking Wnen's
Reproductive Rights, Public Health, H V-AlDs, Hunan
Ri ghts, LGBTQ and Gvil and Human Ri ghts groups who
are all advocating for the passage of the
| egislation, which is the subject of today's
resolution. W'd like to extend our sincere
appreciation to Council Menbers WIlianms and Menchaca
for introducing the resolution and to you,
Chai rperson G bson and nmenbers of the Public Safety

Conmittee for taking the tinme to hear it today in the
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m dst of what we know is a very busy legislative
season.

As you'll hear froma broad range of
organi zations and individuals directly affected by
this practice, police and prosecutors continued
confiscation of condons as evidence is contributing
to a public health crisis in New York GCty. The
NYPD s recent announcenent that it will no | onger
col l ect condons as evidence is wel cone, and an
inmportant step in the right direction. But as nmany
fol ks have already spoken to, the policy,
unfortunately, does not go far enough to protect

vul nerabl e New Yorkers. And continuing to use

condons as evidence, and we're talking here -- | just
want to clarify -- about a nere possession of
condons. | just read the legislation again. It's
about nere possession of condons. The bill does not

bar use of DNA evidence in any case, and it does not
bar use of condons in rape cases.

Clearly, those that are patroni zing and
pronoting trafficking, permtting and prostitution.
Continuing to confiscate and voucher condons as
evidence in pronoting and trafficking cases w |l

severely limt the inpact of the NYPD policy change
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inreality. It will have the effect of harmi ng the
very individuals pronmoting and trafficking |aws are
intended to protect. And will continue to send a
very confusi ng nessage to New Yorkers that carrying,
sharing, and distributing condons could get you
charged with a crine. The State legislation wll
elimnate this exception by extending the ban on the
use of condons as evidence to all prostitution
rel ated offenses, including trafficking and
pronoting, and thereby ensure access to condons to
trafficking victins and youth who are or are profiled
as being involved in the sex trades.

It would al so extend the ban on the use
of condons across the New York State. So the rules
don't change when you go fromcounty to county, and
it would stop the ongoi ng confusi on anobng New Yorkers
about whet her or not having condons on your person or
on your prenm ses would place you at risk of crimna
prosecution. And it will ensure lasting |egislative
change that will bind future adm nistrations,
district attorneys, and conm ssioners in New York
Cty and across the state. The Resolution has the
full support of the organi zations that provide |egal

and support services to the vast mgjority of
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trafficking victins in the United States, New York
State and New York City including Safe Horizon, the
New York Anti-Trafficking Network, and the Freedom
Network, a national coalition anti-trafficking
organi zati on.

And to Florrie Burke who was the founder
of the Freedom Network and the Safe Horizon Anti -
Trafficking Program and the recipient of the
| naugural Presidential Award for extraordinary
efforts to conbat trafficking persons, which she
received from President Cbama in 2013. Florrie, who
unfortunately could not be here with us today, wote
| ast year in support of the legislation as a Founder
and Coordi nator of the Freedom Network: | know that
it is not uncommon for traffickers to restrict or
deny their victins access to condons and basic
reproductive health services as a form of
mani pul ati on and control. However, in New York
State, traffickers have an additional reason to deny
their victinms condonms. Condons found in a |ocation
wher e peopl e have been coerced into the sex trade nmay
be used by prosecutors as evidence to support felony

trafficking charges.
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This neans that traffickers nay have an
especially incentive to forbid their victins from
carrying condons, to band them from |l ocations where
exploitation is occurring, and to nake it nearly
i npossible to use them The consequences for those
forced into the sex trade is severe: Unwanted
pregnancy often followed by forced abortion, and
irreparabl e damage to their reproductive health.
Sonme may argue that prosecutors need every tool at
their disposal to find traffickers and hold them
accountable. But allow ng condons to continue to be
used in trafficking cases is detrinental to the very
people we are trying to help. Florrie says, This
will would also protect the health and |ives of
trafficking victins.

In situations in which wonen and girls,
as well as nen and boys are coerced into sex trade,
endi ng the use of condons is evidence to give them
sonme ability to negotiate for their own sexua
safety. In reality, a condommy be the one
protection a victimof trafficking has fromthe
trafficker's assault on his or her human rights,
aut onony, and body. Florrie closes by saying, As an

out spoken anti-trafficking advocate for nearly two
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decades, | support the toughest prosecution of
traffickers. But prosecutors can and shoul d make
their cases by using condons as evidence. And
pol i cymakers should | ead trafficking victinms out of
the solution. Their lives depend on it. There is
sinmply no question about where those with expertise
and experience of working with trafficking victins
and young people in the sex trades stand on this
bill. And there should be no question about where
| egi sl ators who care about victinms of violence,
public health, wonmen's rights, LGBT rights, and
reproductive rights stand. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you so nuch. |
appreciate your-- I'msorry. | hate to cut anyone
off, but I do want to be m ndful of everyone's tine,
and we do have your testinony. So all of it will go
into the record. Thank you so nuch. You may begin.

ABlI GAI L SVENSTEIN: Good norning. M
nane is Abigail Swenstein, and I'"'ma staff attorney
in the Legal Aid Society's Crimnal Defense Practice.
| work in a specialized unit within that practice
called the Trafficking Victins Advocacy Project
dedi cated to identifying and advocating for victins

of human trafficking caught in the crimnal justice
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system  Throughout our work in crimnal court, we
have beconme too acutely aware of how devastating the
practice of seizing condons as evi dence can be for
those who interact with the police throughout our
city. These practices have severe consequences for
t he nost vul nerable to exploitation, abuse and
discrimnation. The Legal Aid Society strongly
encourages the New York City Council to adopt the
resol ution.

As stated by this commttee, we al so
appl aud the recent policy change announced on My
12t h by NYPD Conm ssioner Bratton, which would limt
the NYDP's practice of confiscating condons in three
prostitution related offenses: Prostitution;
loitering for the purposes of prostitution; and
prostitution in a school zone. This represents a
step in the right direction, and will greatly inprove
the health and safety of all residents of New York
Cty. In addition, several district attorneys have
announced that the possession of condons will no
| onger be used in these prosecutions. Wile these
pol i cy changes shoul d be comrended, they do not go
far enough. Condonms will still be seized as evidence

for arrests made for pronoting prostitution and sex
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trafficking. Current state |aw notw thstandi ng
NYPD s updated policy puts any person who carri es,
possesses or has condons at risk of being suspected
of crimnal activity and endangers the health of al
New Yor kers.

I"d like to respond to sone points raised
by the Staten Island District Attorney's Ofice.
When considered in relation to victins of trafficking
arrests and for prostitution, the inpact of the use
of condons as evidence in any crimnal case is
magni fied, and only serves to further alienate,
victim ze, and render nost vul nerable those we
represent. For many victins of trafficking, the
arrest process alone, and the related interaction
with the crimnal justice system have devastating
personal consequences, and serve to perpetuate their
victim zation. Wen condons are taken as arrest
evi dence or used to support crimnal charges, the
nmessage to these individuals is clear: Better not
have condons in their possession even while being
forced to engage in prostitution. Yet, for those
coerced and forced to engage in prostitution, the
ability to use a condomnay be the only protection

agai nst repeated exposure to di sease and potentia
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pregnancy. The nessage not only resonates with
trafficked people, but also with their exploiters and
traffickers who control every aspect of their |ives,
behavi or, and conduct. Traffickers deci de whether or
not those they coerce into prostitution use birth
control and what nedical or reproductive health
treatnment they are allowed to access. This we have
| earned fromclients. Thus, if condons are all owed
to be used as evidence against traffickers in sex
trafficking prosecutions, the foreseeable practica
i npact remains the same. Many traffickers sinply
wll not allow those they control to carry and use
condons if there's a chance those condons nay expose
traffickers thenselves to crimnal liability.

This is not an issue that can be left to
each | ocal prosecutor and police force to decide. W
shoul d not prohibit [ife threatening practices in New
York City, but tolerate themin Al bany or Buffalo.
Statewi de |l egislative reformis necessary to ensure
that this practice is prohibited throughout New York
State, and that there is uniformty and consi stency.

Passage of the proposed |legislation to
limt the admissibility of evidence of condons

possessed when arrested will save lives. New York
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State should not crimnalize or make evidence a
crime, that which is a life saving device for so nany
peopl e. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you very nuch
You may begin.

LYNLY EGYES: Good norning nenbers of the
Commttee on Public Safety. The Sex Wrkers Project
at the Urban Justice Center very much appreciates the
opportunity to comrent on the proposed resol ution
My name Lynly Egyes, and |I'ma Senior Staff Attorney
at the Urban Justice Center where | primarily
represent survivors of trafficking. |'mhere today
toillustrate to you why this resolution is a huge
step to passing groundbreaking anti-trafficking
| egislation. The best way to explain how inportant
this resolution is to victinms of trafficking is to
tell you about ny client Allison.

Al lison was brought into the United
States by a group of traffickers. On a daily basis
she was beaten, staved, and hum liated. Every
norni ng she was given five condons even though she
was forced to have sex to up to 25 peopl e everyday.
One of Allison's greatest fears while she was being

trafficked is that she mght contract a life-
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threatening illness. Even after her escape she still
tells me that she's scared for the other girls she
| eft behind. She knows they're being denied access
to condons just as she was. She asked nme, Do you
think I wasn't allowed to have condons because
they' re used as evidence? | didn't know what to tell
her, but to be honest, | can't think of another
reason why her trafficker wouldn't | et her have
condons. And | know this trafficking ring is stil
in operation here in New York, and is likely putting
nore and nore victinms at risk everyday.

It's because of Allison and so many ot her
victinms of trafficking that | consider this
Resol ution calling on the New York State Legislature
to pass the Access to Condons Bill to be a
groundbreaki ng nmonment in anti-trafficking history.
This Resolution is trying to protect victins while
they're being trafficked. |It's about saying to
victins, You're not going to give a trafficker any
reason to allow you access to condons. Now, |'ve
heard sone people say that we need to condons as
evidence for trafficking prosecutors. But I
chal | enge that notion. Condons are not evidence of

trafficking. In fact, as far as | know, condons have
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never actually been introduced at trial against a
trafficker.

Successful trafficking prosecutions
require to prove that a person was forced or coerced
into prostitution or other forns of |abor often
through victims statements. A victimthat was
deni ed access to condons by a trafficker ended up
wi th and STI or forced abortion, which |'ve seen both
of, is going to be less likely to cooperate and hel p
prosecute the trafficker. Now, inmagine that victim
finds out that the reason they were deni ed access is
because of the New York State policy. How likely do
you think it is that they' re going to cooperate. |
wanted Allison to be here today. But unfortunately,
her traffickers are still trying to control her by
t hreatening her and her famly. And we're working as
hard as we can to try to find them but it still
hasn't been done.

When | tried to explain to Allison about
t he new policy, she | ooked at ne in confusion. She
said to nme, But that policy wouldn't have hel ped ne,
and it won't help the girls that are still being
forced into prostitution. Wy doesn't the NYPD want

to protect us? Wiy doesn't the NYPD want to protect




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 68
trafficking victins? Now, |'mgoing to ask all of
you in the roomto close your eyes for a nonent. And
|"mgoing to ask you to think about the fact that
you're currently being trafficked. You're in a snal
room Your trafficker unlocks the door fromthe
outside. A nonent |later he brings a man into the
room He hands you five condons. What do you do?

Do you use a condomw th sonmeone else? Do you try to
reuse a condonf? This is what you think about
everyday.

| magi ne having to nmake that cal cul ation
everyday while you're being trafficked for years
until you can escape. Now open your eyes and take a
nonment to think. If you were in Allison's situation
or you child was, or you sister was, or you father
was. Wuldn't you want her to have, or himto have
as many condons as they needed? Wuldn't you renove
every obstacle fromthis life saving tool? Wuldn't
you rather that person have 25 condons, or would you
rat her them have five, even though condons have never
been introduced in a trafficking case? R ght now
we're in a nonent where we can change things and send
a loud and clear nessage to victinms and traffickers.

That the | aw nakers and | aw enforcers of New York
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care about the health and safety of sex workers and
victins of trafficking.

What a powerful nessage that woul d make
to victins and to those that exploit them [I'monly
here today because | care about trafficking victins
because | see this everyday in ny office. | hear
these stories everyday when |'mworking with the
federal government to prosecute traffickers. | care
about the safety and wel fare of victins of
trafficking. | want themto have every single
protection they can. |'m asking you to care about
them too. Please don't |eave trafficking victins
out of this bill. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON @ BSON: Thank you very, very
much and before we get to our next panelist, | just
want to recogni ze the presence of ny coll eague,
Counci| Menber Julissa Ferreras and turn it over to
ny clerk.

CLERK: Resolution 121, Council Menber
Ferreras.

COUNCI L MEMBER FERRERAS: | vote aye.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you very nuch,

and now you may begin. Thank you for being here.
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Bl ANEY GARCI A: Thank you very much. 1I'm
Bianey Garcia. |'mthe LGTQ Organi zer of Mke the

Road, and she's Natalia De Salvo. | want to say ny
testinmony in Spanish and she's going to transl ate.

Bl ANEY GARCI A: [Testifies in Spanish]

TRANSLATOR: So, | will be -- My nane is
Nat al i a, the Organi zer of Make the Road New York. |
will be interpreting. So, hi, ny nanme is Bianey
Garcia. |1'm 24 years old. |'m Mexican transgender.
| work as an LGBTQ organi zer.

MALE SPEAKER: [of f mic]

TRANSLATOR: On May 20t h?

MALE SPEAKER: [off m c]

[ Pause]

TRANSLATOR: Ckay, | work as an LGBTQ
Organi zer of Make the Road New York. Eight years ago
| mgrated to the United States, and | currently
reside in Jackson Heights, Queens. Three years ago |
experienced the usage of condons as evidenced. It
was one ni ght when ny boyfriend and I went out to our
| ocal bar to spend quality tinme together. W took a
couple of drinks and later on that night, we decided
to |l eave the bar and go honme. As ny boyfriend and I

wer e wal ki ng on Roosevelt Avenue, we were cuddling
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and having a great tinme together. The fun was over
when an undercover policenman stopped ne and ny
boyfriend. The undercover policeman went out of the
car wWithout ny consent, and pushed nme agai nst the
wal | taking ny purse away fromne. During the
search, they enptied ny purse and found three
condons.

Wth three condons in their possession,
they decided to arrest nme because supposedly, | was
pronoting prostitution. They were nmaking fun of ny
boyfriend, but after they admtted that he was dating
me and we were not doing anything wong. One of the
policeman told him-- who was Hi spani c asked ny
boyfriend to | eave or else they will arrest him too.
And that night had to be the worst night of ny life,
not because | was taken to the station, and faced a
judge, but because it was the first | ever
experienced discrimnation. As an LGTQ Organizer in
New Yor k of Make the Road New York, | relate to the
stories that | hear everyday comng fromcommunity --
fromny community because they are being profiled by
the sanme discrimnatory act.

Al t hough the Police Comm ssioner stated

that he won't present the condons found in my purse
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as evidence, as an LGBTQ Organi zer | believe that
this has not ended because ny conmunity is being
profiled and arrested for the reasons of |ike color
of their skin or the way of expression.

Additionally, I'mgoing to ask our Council Menber
Julissa Ferreras if it was possible to do a training
every three nonths as a possi bl e suggestion of how
pol i cenmen in Queens specifically down Roosevelt
Avenue can interact with transgender community and
the LGBTQ community. Because we not only identify
this as stop and frisk but also as transphobia and
honmophobi a. And believe that they just did not know
how to interact with the conmunity.

And as long as carrying a condom can be a
possi bl e reason for an arrest, then they will still
pursue the LGTQ comunity out of honmophobia or
transphobia. Even if one is arrested and our | awers
come to the rescue, and they found that there was
not hi ng wong, people still go through this
traumati zi ng experience. Lastly, Bianey nentioned
that, you know, a person, an LGBT person in the State
of New York in the not because we've done sone
wor ki ng around this, but in the State of New York, if

you're ever a victimof this and up in prison, you
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coul d be deportable, and end up in deportation. So
definitely need to stop this.

CHAI RPERSON 3 BSON:  Thank you very mnuch
to all of you, and than you especial ly Bi aney.
Gracias and thank you for being here sharing your
story and the work you do. Certainly, we recognize
this is a growing problem And as soneone who has
now deci ded to take human trafficking as a priority,
" mworking with ny coll eagues who will nake sure
that we continue to work together. Because we know
that there is so many stores like that that are not
told. So many victins that are victins in private,
and we want themto take their stories and turn those
stories into a plan and a purpose. Because there are
so many wonmen and nen out there that don't recognize
that this is a problem And many are facing the sane
situation. So | appreciate the work you do, and want
to turn this over to Council Menber Julissa Ferreras.

COUNCI L MEMBER FERRERAS: Thank you
Madam Chair and, of course, you know, we've been
partners and advocates in many perspectives. This is
sonething that's very inportant to nme and the
Council. Not just for -- Cearly, we have an issue

that needs to be addressed, and | think your
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suggestion is a valid one, and I'Il circle back.. You
have nmy comritnment to reach out to the |oca
precincts, both because we have two precincts on
Roosevelt Avenue. But also kind of having a broader
conversation reaching out to Conmm ssioner Bratton and
Chi ef Banks, and trying to get the narrative. And
for themto have a better understandi ng because we
don't want to nake it, or inprove it on Roosevelt
Avenue, if we're not inproving for the entire Gty of
New York. And that's what this -- this is why we're
here. 1It's because of the Cty of New York.

TRANSLATOR: [ Speaki ng Spani sh]

Bl ANEY GARCI A: Bueno.

COUNCI L MEMBER FERRERAS: But al so, |
want to say as the former Chair of the Winen's |ssues
Conmittee, | see many of the amazing faces of the
wonen and nen that are doing amazing things, fighting
against trafficking. And too often we call it
prostitution, but once you peel the layers of the
oni ons back, you see that it's often tinmes victims.
And there's very few opportunities that we have to be
able to protect wonen, and protect nmen that fall prey
to this horrible victimzation. This is the one

opportunity where governnent really is doing the
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wong thing, and we have to ensure that we give them
at | east the one opportunity to protect their health
and their lives. And that's why |'mvery supportive
of this resolution. | just want to thank all of you
for comng out. |It's pouring out there, but you're
here, and it's inportant. Thank you, Madam Chair,
for this | eadership, and for all that co-sponsored
this legislation. This is really the right way to
go, and the right direction for governnment to be
noving in. G acias.

Bl ANEY GARCI A: Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON @ BSON:  Thank you Counci
Menber Ferreras, and with that | want to thank all of
you for being here, and we're going to call up the
next panel. Thank you so nuch.

[ Pause]

CHAI RPERSON 3 BSON:  Qur next panel is
Trina Vuitton from Streetwi se and Safe; Shel by
Chestnut from AVP, Margaret Worth fromthe Human
Ri ghts Watch; and Mtchell Mra from Streetw se and
Saf e.

[ background di scussi on]

[ Pause]
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CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you. You nay
begi n.

SHELBY CHESTNUT: Thank you. Good
norning. M nanme is Shel by Chestnut and |'m one of
the Co-Directors of Community Organizing and Public
Advocacy at the New York City Anti-Violence Project.
I"'mhere to testify on -- about Resolution 264
i ntroduced by Council Menber Junmane WIIlianms and
Carl os Menchaca, which is pending before the New York
Cty Council, which would support the New York State
Legislation to Prohibit the Use of Condons in al
prostitution related crines. AVP enpowers | esbi an,
gay, bisexual, transgender, queer and affected
communities and allies to end all fornms of violence
t hrough organi zi ng and educati on, and support
servi ces through counseling and advocacy.

And we envision a world in which al
LBGTQ and H V affected people are safe, respected and
are free fromviolence. |In working with survivors of
viol ence, AVP often finds itself in a contradictory
position created by a conflict of state and city
policies. On the one hand we are a state funded
di stributor of condonms to encourage safer sex. On

the other hand, we work with LGBTQ and H V affected
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peopl e, particularly transgender and gender non-
conform ng people, youth, and people of color who are
regularly arrested for carrying condons. As
descri bed below, this contradictory public policy
causes a severe chilling effect, and the regul ar use
of condons to reduce H V transm ssion. Using condons
as evi dence makes bad public policy, puts New York
St ate agencies at odds with each other, and
j eopardi zes safety.

This policy would end -- this policy
should end imediately. HV is an epidem c in New
York City. AVP is funded by the New York City and
the New York State to hand out condons to reduce the
risk of HHV transm ssion, and this make good solid
public health policy for good reason. 1'mgoing to
ski p ahead because | know we're limted for tinme to
the nore inportant stuff. AVP distributes nore than
10, 000 condons each year to survivors of violence and
to LGBTQ conmunity nenbers with the goal of
encour agi ng safer sex practices reducing the
transmssion of HV and ultimtely providing al
people with free and easy access to condons that w |l
keep them and their partners safe. However, as

di scussed nore bel ow, we've seen a narked decrease in
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LGBT people living -- being willing to carry condons
for fear of being arrested and engaging in
prostitution.

AVP annual ly reports on hate viol ence
experience by LGBTQ affected people. In our |atest
report released May 27, 2014, we found across the
nation that al nost 90% of all anti-LGBT hom ci des
were victins in 2013 were people of color, and 72% of
anti-LGBT hom cides in 2013 were transgender wonen.
In New York City in 2013, reports of police --
reports of hate violence increased by al nost 27% f or
LGBTQ and H V affected New Yorkers continuing a
three-year trend. Despite a national decrease in
vi ol ence, 74% of survivors reporting identified as
peopl e of color and reports [bell] of transgender and
gender non-conform ng peopl e increased by 21%

AVP is keenly aware that certain groups,
especi ally poor people, transgender people, African-
Anerican and other nmen of color are far nore likely
to be arrested and prosecuted for crinmes than white
non-transgender nen and non-transgender wonen of any
race. These traditionally marginalized comunities
are al so anong those nost targeted for violence in

the first place. The NYPD recently announced a
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policy to call -- to stop collecting condons as
evidence in sex-rel ated offenses. However, the NYPD
policy -- or the NYPD will continue to coll ect
condons in cases involved trafficking and pronoting
prostitution. Wen the police have discretion to
deci de what of fenses to charge sonmeone with and,

t herefore, whether to seize condons as evi dence.

New Yor kers cannot be sure that they wll
be safe in all circunstances when carrying condons.
When certain -- when people are uncertain, they often
err on the side of not carrying condons at all. AVP
works with many LGBT people particularly young peopl e
who report to AVP that they no | onger carry condons
for fear of being arrested, which neans that HV
transmission is much nore likely to occur through
unprotected sex. Transgender wonen are frequently
profiled as sex workers by police regardl ess of
whet her they are or are not actually engaged in sex
wor k. Because of this, transgender wonen are
especially fearful that any condons in their
possession will be used as evidence that they are
engaging in prostitution rel ated of fenses.

And are, therefore, reluctant to accept

condons from outreach workers. LGBT youth are also




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 80
at high risk. According to the New York City
Departnent of Mental Health and Hygi ene, new HV
di agnosi s anong young nen ages 13 to 19 who have sex
with nen have doubled. LGBT youth face great risk to
t heir physical and enotional health if they are
arrested for practicing public sex. Reducing LGBT s
access to safer sex in the mdst of this violence
further reduces their safety. AVP hears fromyouth
that are afraid to carry condons, and are so aware
that the use of condons as evidence that they have
created this -- | apologize, I"'mgoing to finish

CHAlI RPERSON FERRERAS: That's okay. |
just need you to wap up.

SHELBY CHESTNUT: Yeah. So in closing,
we urge the New York City Council to take swift
action to pass this resolution to protect and pronote
the health of all New Yorkers. And | thank you for

your tinme and consideration. You can read the

report.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you very nuch.
W will. Thank you. You may begin

MARGARET WORTH: Ckay. Thank you for
your tinme. |It's an honor to be speaking with you

today. M nane is Margaret Worth. | work for the
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I nternational Research and Advocacy Organization,
Human Ri ghts Watch. W subnit this testinony in
support of City Council Resolution 264. The use of
condons as evidence of prostitution related of fenses
must end. It is essential to protecting the rights
and the health of all New Yorkers. Adoption of this
resolution will send a clear nessage to State
| egislators that the access to condons, though, is
essential to pronoting public health and human right.

Bet ween Cctober of 2011 and July of 2012,

Human Ri ghts Watch conducted research in New York
City on the existence and effects of police seizing
condons as evidence of prostitution related of fenses.
In July 2012, Human Ri ghts Watch rel eased a report
docunenti ng the use of condons as evi dence of
prostitution in New York and three other najor U S.
based on 125 interviews in New York City. Anobng sone
of the people we interviewed, the practice of condons
bei ng sei zed as evidence caused themto fear carrying
condons to the point where they carried only a few or
none at all. The health consequences of failure to
use condons for sex workers can be dire. New York
City is at the heart of the AIDS epidemc in the

Unite States with an AIDS case rate three tines the
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nati onal average. A study in New York Gty anong
peopl e who exchange sex for noney or other goods,
found that 14% of the men and 10% of the wonen were
H V positive. New York State and City have devoted
enor mous resources to curbing the H 'V epidemnc,

i ncludi ng through common distribution. But these
efforts will continue to frustrated if vul nerabl e
popul ati ons are di scouraged from protecting

t hensel ves because their condons may be used agai nst
them by the police and by prosecutors.

Human Ri ghts Watch bel i eves the State,
though, is particularly inportant to protect the
lives of victinms of trafficking. For the sane
reasons that permtting condons to be used as
evi dence for prostitution underm nes human rights,
including the right to health, permtting condons
found at a | ocation where peopl e have been coerced
into the sex trade to be used by prosecutors as
evi dence to support charges of trafficking or
pronoting prostitution is in practice counter-
productive and risks nore harmto victins of
trafficking. Al though the intent is to secure a
successful prosecution of traffickers is comendabl e

and consistent with governnent obligations to conbat




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 83
trafficking, using condons as evidence in trafficking
cases provides a perverse incentive to traffickers to
prohibit victins fromcarrying or using condons. O
to restrict their access to condons including by
refusing to nmake them avail able at |ocations where
they' re bei ng expl oited.

Human Ri ghts Watch urges the New York
City Council to adopt Resolution 264 wi thout delay to
encourage the New York State Legislature to enact
Senate Bill 1379 and Assenbly Bill 2736 before the
end of the legislative session in order to expand and
strengt hen the pronotion of condom use anong New
York's nost vul nerable residents; trafficking
victinms, sex workers, and LGBT youth as anong the
general public. Thank you for your tine.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON: Thank you very nuch.

M TCHELL MORA: My nane is Mtchell Mora,
and I'ma youth | eader and researcher at Streetw se
and Safe al so known as SAS, an organi zation focused
on policing and crimnalization of LGTQ youth of
color. [sic] In addition to conducting Know Your
Ri ghts trainings and engagi ng LGBTQ yout h of col or
and policy advocacy around issues that affect their

lives, Streetwise and Safe is currently partnering
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with the Uban Institute on a research project funded
by the Federal O fice of Juvenile Justice and
Del i nquency Prevention to docunent the experiences of
| esbi an, gay, bisexual, transgender, and queer youth,
as well as young nen who have sex with nen, and young
wonen who have sex with wonmen who are involved or
perceived to be involved wth the sex trades.

Through this research as well as Know
Your Rights trainings and outreach throughout the
city, Streetwi se and Safe cones into contact with
hundr eds of young wonen of color and LGBT youth in
New York City every year. Many of the young people
that we cone into contact with have experienced
honel essness or are currently honel ess, and many of
t hem have traded sex for the things they need to
survive. Many nore have been profil ed as being
involved in the sex traded based on their gender,
race, sexual orientation, gender identity or
expression. Many of them are under 18 and,
therefore, by law are deened to be trafficked
regardl ess of their circunstances.

As a result, the recent change in NYPD
policy does not go far enough because it does not

protect young people who are or profiled as trading
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sex. Fromthe perspective of young peopl e under the
age of 18, nothing at all has changed as a result of
the NYPD s policy in terns of the consequences of
carrying condons or in their access to condons.
Police will still be able to take condons out of the
hands of young people they believe to be engaging in
prostitution as part of trafficking investigations.
Young people will still be afraid to carry or share
condons for fear that their concession or presence
will be used to prove that are soneone they know is
commtting a serious crine that carries serious tine.

Young people wll continue to get the
nessage that possession of condons can be
crimnalized even if they won't be used to prove sone
of fenses. And not every young person is able to
i ndependent |y nake the deci sion about whet her or how
many condons to carry. | have spoken with youth who
have been involved in the sex trades whose condons
access as well as their daily life was controlled by
an exploiter. For youth who are forced to trade sex,
the practice of using condons as evi dence of
trafficking offenses creates a strong incentive for
peopl e who are exploiting others to deny the people

they are exploiting access to condons. Putting
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people they are exploiting at even greater risk of
H VvV, STls, unwanted pregnancies, and forced
aborti ons.

We know t hrough our work at SAS that
wonen of col or and LGBTQ youth of col or experience
many ki nds of discrimnatory policing. |Including
being profiled for offenses like loitering for the
pur poses of prostitution and | ewd conduct when we are
just standing outside in our nei ghborhoods, walking
down the street, or hanging out with our friends. W
al so know that sonetinmes we are profiled for
pronoting, commtting, and patronizing offenses.
O'ten police and policies also produces the fact that
young worren of col or and LGBT youth of color are
carrying condons as a tool of profiling. As is often
the case with small anmounts of marijuana, [bell]
condons are found by police during stop and fri sk,
and we are told to enpty our pockets and enpty our
bags or purses. 1'mgoing to skip. GCkay, | got that
you don't have tine. [sic]
Al though it is not illegal to carry

condons, the practice of continuing to cite condons
as evidence in prosecution related to cases,

including trafficking cases has created a climate in
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whi ch LGBTQ yout h feel unsafe carrying condons. And
we feel unsafe carrying condons because we are.
Despite the risk of police violence and incarceration
the LABT youth and youth with involvenent in the sex
trades face when carrying condons, many still do,
hi ding themin bushes, in shoes, bras while trading
sex, and doing what we need to do to survive. Yeah,
so I'mjust going to the last thing. W urge you to
pass this resolution and send a strong nessage to the
| egislators in Al bany that we need to protect the
right of young women and LGBT youths to protect
oursel ves. Thank you

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you. Thank
you very mnuch

TRINA VU TTON: Good norning. My nane is
Trina Vuitton, and I'ma Youth Leader and Streetw se
and Safe, also known as SAS, an organi zation focused
on policing practices that affect LGBT youth col or.
The practices of using condons in prostitution
rel ated of fenses affect ny community. LGBT youth
peopl e because we are often profiled s being engaged
in sex trades. One tine | was going to a Kiki Ball on
a Saturday night in the West Village. | was standing

on the street talking with some friends and an




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 88
of fi cer approached ne. She asked for ny ID. | gave
it to her. At the time, | didn't have ny nane
| egal |y changed. She only would not call nme by ny
real name, but she kept calling nme nman and a faggot.
She took me -- she took a picture of nmy I.D. and sent
it to the Sixth Precinct.

The di spatcher told her that ny record
was clear, but instead of letting me go, she said she
wanted to see in ny purse. | didn't know ny rights
then, or I would have consented to the search. |
woul d have not consented to the search. | thought |
had to show her the contents of ny purse. Wen she
| ooked inside, she saw two condons. She called the
pol i ceman back, and asked for a police car to cone.
| asked her why are you |locking ne up? | can't carry
condons? She replied, You re getting |ocked up for
prostitution. | was taken to the precinct and put in
with nen. | was 17 years old when this happened,
whi ch neans that the new NYPD policy would have --
woul d not have stopped this because the condons still
woul d have been taken away from ne as evi dence of
trafficking.

This is my story, but this is also the

story of many of ny friends who are | eshi ans, gays,
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bi sexual s, transgenders, and youth of color. Wen
t he police take our condons, or |ock us up for
carrying condons, they're putting our lives at risk.
How am | supposed to protect nyself fromH V and STIs
when |'m scared to | eave ny house with condons in ny
purse? For ny community is not only being put at
risk for HV, STls, and unwanted pregnancies, they're
having to be harassed and assaulted by police
officers for being transgender or queer. W thank
you for holding this hearing today and listening to
our voices and experiences. W ask you to help stop
this kind of discrimnation against wonen of col or
and LGBT youth. | have experienced and ny friends --
| have experience by passing this resolution and
passing a law that will stop the condons we carry of
bei ng used as evidence of intent to engage in
prostitution and rel ated of fenses anywhere any ti ne.
Thank you very nuch

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you. Thank

you very nuch. | appreciate all of you being here,
and we have your testinony. W'Ill make sure it's al
recorded into our record, and certainly thank you for
your advocacy in the work that you do. Thank you.

Qur next panel is Beatrice House fromthe Red
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Urbrella Project; Hayley CGorenberg from Lanbda
Legal ; Elizabeth Adans, Pl anned Parent hood of NYC

and Erin Drinkwater from Brooklyn Community Pride

Center.

[ Pause]

[ background conversati on]

CHAI RPERSON 3 BSON:  Thank you all. You
may begi n.

BEATRI X HOUSE: Good norning. M nane is
Beati x House, and |I'm a nenber of Red Unbrella
Project, a peer-led organization that anplifies the
voi ces of people in the sectors through nedia,
storytelling, and advocacy prograns. Qur nenbers are
nostly | ow i ncone wonen including both assist [sic]
and trans who are currently informally involved in
the sex trades. W have been working with the whole
coalition of organizations on the issue of condons
bei ng used as evidence of prostitution rel ated
of fenses since 2009. And I'mhere today to offer
testi nony and support of Resol ution 264.

| support the passage of State Bill A2736
and 1379 because for sex workers condons, which are a
safer sex tool, that the Department of Health gives

away by the mllions every year are being
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confiscated, destroyed, and used as evi dence of
prostitution. Many comrunity organi zati ons make use
of free NYC condom prograns. But increasingly the
people in the conmunities we serve are not taking
advant age of the free condons because of the fear
that they will be stopped and searched, and the cops
wll use it as evidence against them The people who
work in the sex trades whether they are there by
choi ce, circunstances, or coercion are human bei ngs
who deserve access to condons so that we can protect
oursel ves from unwant ed pregnanci es, and sexual |y
transmtted infections including H V.

The nere fact of access to condons is not
condoned coercion or trafficking. Access to condons
is a harmreduction strategy. For people who enter
the sex trades by coercion, it is inportant that this
bill is a conprehensive one that includes a ban on
condons as evidence in trafficking cases.
Traffickers exert a |ot of control over their
victinms, and if condons can be used as evi dence
against them they wll restrict or deny access to
condons to their victins.

This creates an unacceptable situation in

whi ch peopl e have been victimzed twice, force to
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exchange sexual ly | abor, and prevented from
protecting thensel ves from pregnancy and di sease.

Red Unbrella Project recently saw a case involving a
wonman accused of trafficking that presented anot her
problemw th usi ng condons as evidence. The
defendant, who I will refer to as Ms. Zing to
protect her confidentiality, was continually
pressured by the D.A.'s office to accept a plead that
included forfeiture of $8,000 even after the evidence
against Ms. Zing was insufficient to prosecute her
for trafficking.

And, her charge was dropped to operating
a massage parlor without a |license, and noved to the
human trafficking intervenion courts. It was there
because Ms. Zing was referred to as a straw owner, or
as a person who nay be trafficked thensel ves, but who
is witten as the owner of a business to protect the
person who is really doing trafficking. In Zing's
case, condons were used as evi dence that she was
trafficker. There were no receipts in her name, and
no proof that she nmade noney fromthis business that
she all egedly owned. Just the condons. Even after

it was noved to the D. A s office--




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON PUBLI C SAFETY 93

After it was noved -- excuse nme -- the
D.A's office continued to push for the original
pl ea. Luckily, the judge imredi ately saw through
this, all this rubbish. And the D.A's office had
the audacity to call it evidence and gave the wonman
Adj our nnent of Contenplation of Dismissal the next
week. Condons are a part of the lifeline that people
in the sex trades have to nmaintain control of their
lives. The only way to preserve this lifelineis to
ban the use of condons unless it is absolutely not in
certain cases, but absolutely by the state | aw, and
not at the nercy of the whinms of which the Police
Commi ssi oner currently occupies that position. Thank
you.

HAYLEY GORENBERG  Good afternoon and
thank you. M nane is Hayley Gorenberg and I'm
Deputy Legal Director of Lanmbda Legal. | have great
respect for the District Attorneys, which is why |'ve
participated in so many neetings with them over the
past couple of years about condons. But, as they say,
when you're a hamrer, everything is a nail. And sone
district attorneys cannot bring thenselves to take
off the table this potential theoretical piece of

evi dence. They are not public health officials, but
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your job is to take a broader view, and you have it
in your power to help the people we're here talking
about today.

Condons are evidence of interest in safer
sex. Condons are evidence of attenpts to protect
your health. Condons, mllions of condons every year
have been distributed by the city since early in the
H V epidem c. Mich of that epidem c focused in New
York City because of rock solid, scientific nedica
evi dence that condons nake us safer. But today, nany
young peopl e, transgender wonen, and many ot her
peopl e profiled by police avoid condons because New
York has insisted on collecting them as evi dence of
prostitution related crines. M colleagues and | at
Lanbda Legal, the ol dest and | argest |egal
organi zation litigating and advocating for the rights
of | esbians, gay nen, bisexuals, transgender people
and people affected by and living with HV, consider
this probl em outrageously dangerous and stunningly
retrograde given what we know has been scientifically
proven, the nedical truth about HV, condons, and
public health.

By passing this resolution, you'll be

following the | ead of Kathleen R ce, head of the
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District Attorney's Association of the State of New
York who has said, if you're trying to use condons to
make your prostitution case, you don't have a case.
You'll be following in the footsteps of San Francisco
and Washington, D.C., and you'll be follow ng the
evi dence presented by Hunman Ri ghts Watch whose report
cat al ogs the damage w ought by this practice in New
York and el sewhere as an offense to human rights.

And pl ease renenber the indicators that 40% of our
honel ess youth are | esbian, gay, bisexual, and
transgender, and that many either are or profiled as
engaging in survival sex or prostitution related

of f enses.

When they' re under 18, the | aw deens them
to be trafficked. That nmeans the recent NYPD policy
change does not elimnate the risk that condons in
t he possession of youth under 18 will be used as
evidence in pronoting and trafficking investigations
against them And that neans people will be deterred
fromcarrying, sharing, or making condons avail abl e
to LGBT young people and others who may be invol ved
or profiled as involved in the sex trades. And that
critically underm nes condomacts [sic] as to this

popul ation at such high risk of HV infection. And
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that is exactly what's happened in New YorKk. W
held a forumfor district attorneys a couple of
sumrers ago so that young people could speak out.

And they nade it crystal clear that using condons as
evi dence quite predictably keeps them from carrying
condons.

In ny work as a | egal services attorney
for years before | even got to Lanbda Legal's HV
Project, | kept a basket of condons on ny desk for
people to take freely. Now, people who do these jobs
wi th baskets of condons handy report their clients
don't take themany nore, or they worry if they take
nore than one maybe they'll hit the magi ¢ nunber,
some magi ¢ nunber where the property to protect their
heal th just becane evidence of a crime. And that's a
public health disaster. 1In our years of advocati ng,
no one has ever contradicted that statenent. It is a
public health disaster. So in conclusion, we need
cl ear unanbi guous | aw t hat condons cannot be used to
prosecute you for any prostitution related crime. It
is as sinple as that, and it needs to be as sinple as
that to send the clear nessage that will make a
difference in what peopl e understand on the

grassroots level in the streets of New York, the city
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that you serve. Thank you very nuch for supporting
Resol uti on 264.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you very nuch.
You may begi n.

ELI ZABETH ADAMS: CGood afternoon. My
nane is Elizabeth Adans. |'mw th Pl anned Parenthood
New York City. Planned Parenthood of New York Gty
urges the City Council to pass Resolution 264 in
support of this statew de |egislation, which would
amend the State |aw. Pl anned Parent hood of New York
Cty currently serves over 50,000 New Yorkers every
year, and reaches an additional 25,000 through our
educati on prograns which focus on healthy
relationships and how to best care for one's own
sexual health and one's own wel |l being. O course,

i ncluding contraception. Qur HV Prevention and Care
Programis one of the oldest in the country providing
services directly in the communities where these
services are needed the nost.

For several years, we have worked
al ongside the fell ow advocates to support
conprehensive | egislation to prevent the use of
condons as evidence of charges related to sex work.

As a | eading reproductive healthcare provider in New
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York City, we strongly believe that no New Yorker
shoul d fear carrying condons because they risk those
condons be introduced as evidence of prostitution.
We are proud to provide services in a city that due
in large part to the | eadership and innovation of our
Departnent of Health and Mental Hygi ene has one of
the | argest and nost successful distribution prograns
in the country. W know that a conbi nati on access,
education, and service provision ensures a safer,
heal thier New York City.

W appl aud the recent announcenent by the
New York City NYPD that they will stop confiscating
condons for certain charges related to sex work.
However, we urge the New York City Council to
strongly advocate for the passage of a statew de
conpr ehensive |l egislation to ensure that no one
anywhere in the State of New York has to fear arrest
or harassnent for carrying condons. For too |ong,
our policies have nade many New Yorkers afraid to
protect thenselves. Carrying condons shoul d never be
used as evidence for a crine. As a |eading
heal thcare provider in New York City serving all
i ndividual s regardless of their ability to pay, we

recogni ze the intersection of public safety and
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public health. Qur continuing conmtnent to serving
patients on a sliding scal e goes beyond just offering
heal thcare, but ensuring that that healthcare is
accessible to all New Yorkers. W applaud Counci l
Menmber Menchaca, and Council Menber WIIianms and
Counci| Menber G bson for their |eadership on this
i ssue. And thank the nenbers of the New York City

Council for continuing to stand up. Thank you very

much.
CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you very nuch.
ERI N DRI NKWATER: Good afternoon. M
name is Erin Drinkwater. |'mthe Executive D rector

of the Brooklyn Community Pride Center of Brooklyn's
LEBTQ Community Center. W are also a nenber of the
Comunities United for Police Reform as well as the
NYPD Advi sory Council along with many others in the
room and a nmenber of the Access to Condons
Coalition. At the Brooklyn Comunity Pride Center,
we're commtted to affecting positive change within
t he Borough of Brooklyn and in the community at

| arge. W provide a conprehensive program of
services in partner with many organi zations in the

room
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There are a handful of ways that the |ack
of a conprehensive or statew de policy negatively
i npacts our work. One of our many nethods of
affecting positive change is the pronotion of public
health. We regularly host workshops and di scussions
focused excl usively on health including sexual and
reproductive health. Qur clients are offered and
have access to condons, which have been provi ded
t hrough the nmention of the New York City's Free
Condom I nitiative. However, we're troubled in
knowi ng that while our city invests in the free
di stribution of condons, which assists in the
pronoti on of safe sex, and reduced unwanted
pregnanci es, that individuals who cone to the Center
and | eave with safer sex materials could be at risk.
W work with clients and users of the center, many of
whom are youth of col or and transgender i ndividuals
who we know are often di sproportionately targeted by
t he NYPD under the practice of Stop, Question and
Fri sk.
These individuals are profiled by police
based on | ook, deneanor, or attire. They may be
deened as too provocative or revealing, strolling

t hrough certain streets or certain nei ghborhoods, or
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suspi ci ous behavior, one of the nmany reasons that
i ndi vidual s are stopped. These sane fol ks who are
teaching safer sex practices in order to protect
their health and the community at large, are |eaving
the safe space of the Center. And have to ask
t hensel ves what's nore inportant, their health and
wel | being or the use of condons to justify an arrest.
Usi ng condons as evidence for the prosecution of any
crinme presents and incredible deterrent for those
engaged in practices of any prostitution rel ated
offense. Sorry, any prostitution related act, and in
the pronotion of safe sex. Sinply, the practice of
usi ng condons as evidence has an untold public health
i nplication.

At the Brooklyn Community Pride Center

we wel cone the recent changes to the NYPD s policy
concerning the use of condons. However, while |'m
encouraged, this progress -- in this progress, and in

taking steps in the right direction to ensure that

civil liberties and rights are equally protected for
all people, | nust state that further steps nust be
taken to protect all individuals from being

crimnalized for possession of condons. W are

di sappoi nted that the policy change does not go far
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enough. Police can still continue to use the
possessi on of condonms to justify an arrest,
confi scate condons from sex workers and survivors as
i nvestigatory evidence when pronoting or trafficking
i s suspected, and confiscate condons as evidence in
pronmoting and trafficking cases. It becones
incredibly difficult and chall engi ng to enphasi ze the
i nportance of using condons considering the
ram fications for possession of condonms when we know
that individuals |eaving the Center do engage in
survival sex or they thensel ves are sex workers or
survivors.

As our clients | eave our conmunity
center, we're often left wondering about their safety
and well being. Qur clients are left with a difficult
deci si on of choosing between protecting their health
or potentially being the subject of prosecution. You
saw t he nuance back and forth earlier today with the
D.A.'s office and Council Menber WIIlianms. Now
i magi ne being a young person who's dealing with al
sorts of things, and trying to navigate the [bell]
si mpl e question of whether or not to take condons
fromthe Cormunity Center to protect their own

safety.
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It's necessary for us to pass
conpr ehensi ve and statew de | egislation. This cannot
be understated. The expansion of NYPD s nost recent
adopt ed practice concerning the treatnent of condons
must be conprehensively expanded to include al
prostitution related of fenses, and all NYPD
enforcenent practices. Finally, New York City nust
serve as an exanple for the rest of the state through
our policy and push to nove our |egislators in Al bany
for a statew de solution when one is |ong overdue.
As | ong as condons be confiscated and used as
evi dence on sex workers and nenbers of the LGBTQ
comrunity subject to having to nmake a tragi c choice
regarding their own safety and health. | thank you
fore the opportunity to testify here today, and
| ooking forward to the testinony of ny coll eagues.
CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you very nuch.

Thank you all for being here, for your advocacy and
the work you do, and pl ease know that you have
t renmendous supporters in the Gty Council who will
conti nue to have these conversations and work wth
you. So thank you again for your testinony.

[ Pause]
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CHAI RPERSON G BSON: Qur next panel is
Anna Sani [ sp?] from Brooklyn, New York; Jarad Ri nger
from PROS Network; |van Espi noza-Mdrigal, The Center
for HV Law and Policy; as well as Denetrius Thomas
fromthe Gay Men's Health Crisis. And if there's
anyone here that still wi shes to testify, please nake
sure that you up at the front. This is our | ast
panel for the panel for the afternoon if you have not
signed up already. Thank you.

ANNA SANI:  Thanks so much for this
opportunity to testify on this resolution in support
of a statew de conprehensive bill that bans condons
as evidence in all prostitution and prostitution
related court proceeding. M nane is Anna Sani. |I'm
a statew de comunity organi zer with Voi ces of
Conmunity Activists and Leaders New York. New York
is a statewi de grassroots nenbership organization
bui | di ng power anong | ow i ncone people affected by
H V- AIDS, the drug war, and mass incarceration to
create healthy and just conmunities. W know that
condons are an inportant public health tool, and that
crimnalize it -- crimnalizing them underm nes our
efforts to pronote safe sex practices in our

conmuni ti es.
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When this crimnalization is connected to
prostitution, we know that this disproportionately
and negatively inpacts | owincome LGBTQ comunities
of color where fol ks are commonly sex trading. And
sex working as well as nore commonly profiled as sex
wor kers by | aw enforcenment. W know that there is no
part way solution to this issue. For the purposes of
public safety, we need a whol esal e decrimnalization
of condons that is consistent across the state, and
inclusive of all prostitution related offenses. Wen
we mai ntain condons as evidence in pronoting and
trafficking offenses, as the NYPD policy has, we
create a powerful deterrent for pinps and traffickers
to provide condons to the people they are exploiting.
Once it becones clear that condons are a potentia
el enent in a case against them any mnimlly
intelligent and self-preserving trafficker or pinp
wll elimnate their large-scale availability.

W are in effect disincentivizing exactly
what we want to happen, which is that if people are
forcing sexual |abor, then they in the very | east
provi de sone neans for the vul nerable people they are
exploiting to protect thenselves. Anything |less than

a conprehensive ban on condons as evi dence prevents
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harm reducti on workers in our comunities fromthe
unequi vocal pronotion of condonms possession as a
public individual good. As |long as condons carry
wei ght in crimnal proceedings, people who engage in
sex trading either by force or by choice, will have
guesti ons about whether condons can be used agai nst
them This is especially true anpongst young peopl e
whose involved is deened by law to constitute sex
trafficking, and fear the use of condons as evi dence
in pronoting or trafficking each other

It is vitally inportant that New York
City legislators seek and expanded ban agai nst the
use of condons as evidence beyond the new y adopted
NYPD policy that prohibits the practice in only a
fraction of prostitution related offenses. Wile we
appreciate the NYPD policy as a first step in
recogni zing the vital inportance of this issue, we
are also clear that it does not nearly go far enough.
W urge you to pass this resolution in support of a
statewide bill to prohibit the use of condons as
evidence in prostitution and prostitution rel ated
trials. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you very nuch
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JARAD RI NGER: (Good afternoon everyone.
My nanme is Jarad Ringer, Board Menber at the PROS
Net wor Kk New York, a network of organizations that
provi des services and resources for people who engage
in sex work. I'malso the Director of Educationa
and Training at the Center for H V Educati onal
Studi es and Training at CUNY Hunter College. Thank
you to New York Gty Council Menbers Menchaca and
Wllianms for their |eadership on this inportant
i ssue. The PROS Network worked with the New York
City Departnment of Health to produce research that
shows the inpact of the use of condons as evi dence
and the health and safety of sex workers. Al nost
hal f of the sex workers we interviewed reported that
t hey have had their condons confiscated or destroyed
by the NYPD. This practice is not sone snal
i nconveni ence. Fort percent of the sex workers
interviewed went on to engage in sex work w thout a
condom due to the actions of our Cty's police force.
The PROS Network is encouraged to see
that the NYPD is taking steps to stop the practice of
usi ng condons as evidence for certain charges rel ated
to sex work. Admitting there is a problemis the

first step towards nmaki ng changes. The NYPD
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statenent does not go far enough. W need
conpr ehensi ve statewi de | egislation to ensure that no
one anywhere in New York State has to fear harassnent
for carrying condonms. As far as |I'maware, this is
the only city in the world that has its own branded
condons. Qur Health Departnment has invested in
adverti senent to pronote condons -- to pronbte condom
use on billboards, bus stops and the subway all over
the city. Condons are avail able through non-profit
organi zations, H'V research centers, schools,
doctor's offices, restaurants, bars, and even in sone
pol i ce precincts.

There is a di sconnect when one

institution is investing heavily in distributing
condons and pronoting their use, and another is
confiscating condons and arresting and harassing
those who are taking the sound advice of our health
prof essionals. There are no laws in this city or
state that make condons illegal. However, our
research has shown that the practice of confiscating
condons has in effect crimnalized condom possessi on.
Condons are a cheap and effective way of protecting
peopl e from pregnancy, H V-AIDS, Hepatitis and many

STls. \Whether you're person engaging in sex wrk, a
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transgender or gender non-conform ng person, gay, or
bi sexual , a young person of color, or anyone else in
New York State, you have the right to protect
yoursel f and the person you are wth.

Qur Health Departnent has realized this.
It is time for our elected officials to back the
message of the Access to Condons Coalition, and pass
this bill because condons are a human right and
t aki ng away condons flies in the face of what nakes
t he nost sense.

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  Thank you.

DEMETRI US THOVAS: Good afternoon. |
thank the Council for this opportunity. |'m
Denetrius Thomas, an attorney with Gay Men's Heal th
Crisis, GWHC s Public Policy Departnent. | testify
on behal f of GWHC and the 25 organi zati onal nenbers
of the Access to Condons Coalition in support of
Resol uti on 0264, which calls for the passage of State
Legislation A 2736, S.1379. GQGWHC has led the fight
against HV-AIDS in New York City and across the
nation for over three decades. GVWHC s mission is to
fight the end of the H V-AIDS epidemc, and uplift
the lives of everyone affected. Condons are one of

the nost reliable, accessible, and inexpensive HV
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prevention tools. Yet, this vital |ife saving too
is being stripped away fromthe very conmmunities that
need themthe nost. H V-ADS, as you all know, H V-
Al DS di sproportionately inpacts | owincone
communi ties, communities of color, youth between the
ages of 13 and 29, wonen, LGBT people. W also know
that these groups are also nost affected by the New
York City Police Departnent's discrimnatory stop-
and-frisk policies.

A recent analysis done by GVHC shows t hat
| ow i ncone communities with the highest H V-AlIDS
rates are al so those nost affected by the New York
City Police Departnment's discrimnatory stop-and-
frisk policies. For exanple, Bed-Stuy and Crown
Hei ghts has the sixth highest HV diagnosis with an
infection rate of 59.6 per 100,000 people. It also
has the third highest stop-and-frisk rate in the city
of 21.8 per 100 people. G@QVHC s analysis al so reveal s
t hat t he denographi c breakdown of new H V infections
and those nost affected by New York Police
Departnent's discrimnatory stop-and-frisk are
strikingly simlar. Just to highlight a few
exanmples. Fifty-five percent of blacks are stopped

and frisked, and 59 account for new H YV i nfections
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yearly. Fifty percent of 13 to 24 year-olds are
stopped and frisked, and 26% of 13 to 23 year-olds
account for new HV infections, and that's just to
hi ghlight a few exanples. Thus, while the New York
Pol i ce Departnment's new policy under the direction of
Conmi ssioner Bratton is a step in the right
direction, and we applaud his efforts, it is not
enough to protect those marginalized communities nost
i npacted by H 'V and discrimnatory stop and frisk
policies. The only way to properly address these
issues is through statewide legislation that is
conpr ehensi ve, universal, and prohibits the
confi scation and use of condons as evidence in al
prostitution rel ated cases.

New York City Council Resolution 0264,
which calls for the passage of State Legislation
A. 2736 and S.1379. It sends a clear nessage to New
York State Legislators and the Governor that now is
the time to provide all New Yorkers, especially those
nost vul nerable [bell] infections with the right to
possess and use condons free fromfear of police
harassnment, arrests, and/or prosecution. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON @ BSON:  Thank you.
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| VAN ESPI NOZA- MADRI GAL:  Good aft er noon.

My nanme is |lvan Espinoza-Madrigal, and | amthe Legal
Director of the Center for HV Law and Policy, a
nati onal resource and strategy center based here in
New York. W coordinate the Positive Justice
Project, a national canpaign |eading the fight to end
crimnalization of HV across the United States. CQur
support for the resolution is based on the fact that
condons remain the best protection against not only
H V but al so agai nst other STDs, including treatnent
resi stant Gonorrhea.

Condom confiscation creates serious
obstacl es for public health canpaigns to address
health threats because it makes people afraid of
accessing, carrying, and using condonms. New York
City is the epicenter of the HV epidemc. Over
100, 000 people are living with H'V here in the city,
and to help curb the epidemc, the Gty distributes
mllions of condons. It is an inportant public
health intervention. |t encourages safe sex,
prevents unwanted pregnancies, and protects
i ndividuals from STDs. Neverthel ess, police officers
are confiscating and destroyi ng condons on the

street, particularly fromwonen of color, transgender
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wonen and i nm grant wonen. These | eaves a strong
i npression that police officers are targeting peopl e
based on race, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, and imm gration status. This renders
vul nerabl e individuals who are already at high risk
for STDs and H'V even nore vul nerabl e to having
unprotected sex. Using the crimnal justice system
to penalize condom possessi on not only places wonen
at risk, it also contributes to the over-
crimnalization of people of color, immgrants, and
transgender individuals. It creates a pipeline for
arrests, inprisonnent, and deportation.

The Police Conmm ssioner announced a
policy change limting the practice of confiscating
condons in certain cases. However, condonms Wl |
still be invoiced as evidence for arrests made for
pronoting prostitution and for sex trafficking cases.
New York States need to pronpte and protect condom
possession and use. W urge you to call for
| egislation that will end discrimnatory policing
that underm nes our inportant investnent in public
heal th. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON @ BSON: Thank you very mnuch

to all of you for your presence, your testinony, and
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all of the incredible work you do. Thank you very
much for being here.

[ Pause]

CHAI RPERSON G BSON:  So, as we cl ose, |
just want to thank and acknow edge all of the
advocates and the district attorney representatives
that have cone forth today on Res 0264, as well as
the pastor who cane to testify in support of Res
0121. This Council and this conmttee certainly
understand the chall enges that we face. And as
sonmeone who represents Bronx County, soneone who is a
former State Legislator, | certainly know how
challenging it is to get bills passed in both houses
in Al bany as well as get the support of our Governor.
So with two weeks remaining of the |egislative
session for this year, if we are not successful, |
al ways want to make sure that the public knows that
the Council will remain a strong advocate in fighting
agai nst this policy.

To ne, that undermnes public health. It
certainly doesn't send the proper nessage that using
condons is a life saving neasure and tool. So | want
to thank all the advocates for com ng because |

recogni ze that this affects every New Yorker, whether
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you're in inmmgrant conunities, LGBT, whether you
are in mnority conmunities, poor communities. It
affects each and every one of us in sonme way. And so
| want to thank the advocates for the work they do
each and every day. | know the chall enges ahead, but
| certainly remain optimstic. And in the future
I"m Il ooking forward to working with Council Menbers
WIllianms as well as Menchaca to have a hearing
hopefully in the fall, post-budget, of course.

We need to get through our budget season.
Wth the New York Police Departnment, with our five
district attorneys because we need to have nuch nore
conversations. These cases are goi ng on each and
every day. There are people that are being arrested
for possessing condons, and so we know that the tine
is now This is our crossroad. W nust continue to
do this work. So you have ny conmtnent that we wll
have a hearing very soon, and bring the Police
Departnent as well as the rel evant advocacy groups so
that we can continue to talk about this. Because
again, Al bany is Al bany, and we still have work to do
here in the City of New York. So again, | thank you

all for being here. And with that, this public
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hearing on the Conmittee on Public Safety is hereby

adj ourned. [gavel]
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